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P R O C E E D I N G S 

MS. ANDERSON:  I would like to call this

meeting to order, please.  The roll call.

Adrian.

MR. TABB:  Here.

MS. ANDERSON:  Cynthia.

MS. STEELE:  Here.

MS. ANDERSON:  Jessica.

MS. PECK:  Here.

MS. ANDERSON:  Angela.

MS. JACKSON:  Here.

MS. ANDERSON:  And I have Kim.

MS. FORD:  Here.

MS. ANDERSON:  And I am Trish, and we are

waiting on Wendy, she's on her -- on her way,

en route.

We have the minutes, if everybody will

look over the minutes.

MS. KERSEY:  I don't think the minutes are

in here.

MS. JACKSON:  We got them in an email.  We

got them in an email.

MS. ANDERSON:  We got them separate.

MS. KERSEY:  Yeah.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Do I have anything
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that needs to be corrected or amended or do you

have a motion to make?

MS. STEELE:  I would like to make a motion

that the minutes be approved from the last

meeting.

MS. FORD:  I'll second it.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  I have a motion by

Cindy and a second by Kim.  All those in favor?

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:  Aye.

MS. ANDERSON:  And the motion carries and

the minutes are now approved.

And we're up to our paid violations.  Are

we ready to start that or do we need to do

something else?  

Okay.  And the first one is Preston's Hair

and Body Salon, and we'll turn it over --

MS. KERSEY:  Oh, did you do the paid

violations?

MS. ANDERSON:  Sorry, I did not do the

paid violations.  I skipped right by it.  I am

so sorry.  I'm so sorry.  

The paid violations -- can we approve the

paid violations?

MS. FORD:  I make a motion that the paid

violations stand.
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MR. TABB:  I second.

MS. ANDERSON:  And Adrian seconded that.

Okay.  All those in favor?

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:  Aye.

MS. ANDERSON:  Aye.

All those opposed?  The motion passes,

unanimously.

And Wendy is now here.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Yes.

---o--- 

Ms. Kersey did the program updates.

Updated the committee on the status of

electronic inspections.  Introduced the new

inspector, Sondra Jones.  

Ms. Ford commended the section and the

inspectors on the testing.  

---o--- 

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



   8

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING

IN THE MATTER OF: 

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PETITIONER 

v. 

PRESTON'S HAIR & BODY SALON RESPONDENT 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Good

morning, everyone.  We are on the record before

the Arkansas Cosmetology Board in the matter of

Preston's Hair and Body Salon.  Is someone here

representing Preston's this morning?  

Hi.  Come up and have a seat right there,

if you would.

And what is your name, ma'am?

MS. EASTEP:  Lynn Eastep.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  I'm sorry?

MS. EASTEP:  Lynn Eastep.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Spell the

last name.

MS. EASTEP:  E-a-s-t-e-p.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  And

L-y-n-n?

MS. EASTEP:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Lynn

Eastep.  All right.  And thank you, Ms. Eastep,

for being here this morning.
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Representing the board, of course, is Rick

Hogan, attorney.  And the investigator is?

THE WITNESS:  Roselyn Smith.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Roselyn Smith.

Okay.  And will there be testimony coming from

any other party other than Ms. Eastep and Ms.

Roselyn Smith?

Ms. Kersey.  All right.  Let me swear in

the people that will be testifying.  If you

will raise your right hand, please.

(WHEREUPON, the witnesses were sworn by

the Hearing Officer.)

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Thank you.  And please speak up loudly enough

so that Susan, our court reporter, can hear

you, because she's recording all of this

testimony today.  

This matter is before the cosmetology

board to determine whether there has been a

violation of the rules and regulations that

govern the cosmetology industry.

Mr. Hogan, will you be presenting any

documentary evidence today?

MR. HOGAN:  I will, Madam Hearing Officer

Johnson.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And what --

where -- what is that?

MR. HOGAN:  We have nine pages of -- of

documents that's -- could someone make sure

that Ms. Eastep is -- do you have those?

MS. EASTEP:  Uh-huh.

MS. CRAVOTTA:  There is pictures.

MS. EASTEP:  Is that what this is?  I

mean --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Yes.  It should

be nine pages.  And -- let's see.

MS. KERSEY:  Pictures.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.

MS. MALLORY:  Nine pages plus the

pictures.

MR. HOGAN:  Are the pictures in there as

well?

MS. SMITH:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Any

objections, Ms. Eastep, to this -- those

documents being considered by the board?

MS. EASTEP:  No, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  All

right.  Thank you.  Did you bring anything, any

documents that you wanted the board to consider
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today, Ms. Eastep?

MS. EASTEP:  Actually, I took some

pictures on my cell phone as well.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  And you

wanted the board to look at those?

MS. EASTEP:  On the picture that she took

of the trashcan that is underneath the sink, I

have been told that that trashcan is supposed

to be in a closed container.  I've got a

picture of a cabinet that it normally goes in,

and when we're doing a color, and I just got

through doing a foil color, to keep from

opening the cabinets door and it being in my

leg way, I usually pull the trashcan out and I

put it back in the cabinet, which is closed,

and I can show you a picture of that.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And you have a

picture of that?

Okay.  Mr. Hogan, do you have any

objections to that?

MR. HOGAN:  No, none.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  When you

it's your turn to testify, then you can bring

that picture up -- 

MS. EASTEP:  Okay.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- and you can

certainly bring it up and pass it around to the

board and let them look at it.

MS. EASTEP:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay?  Good.  

All right.  Is there anything else that we

need to take notice of?

MR. HOGAN:  Just can ask the board to be

able to take notice of the rules and

regulations and also the statute.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  And

we will be taking additional notice of the

rules and regulations that govern the

cosmetology industry and they will be

considered part of the record as well.

All right.  And you may call your first

witness.

MR. HOGAN:  Since the -- Ms. Eastep is

here, I -- I think we can shorten it a little

bit, since she obviously knew that there was

notice of the hearing and she knows about

today's hearing.  So I'm going to go ahead and

call our investigator, Roselyn.

WHEREUPON, 

ROSELYN SMITH, 
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having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Would you state your name and your position with the

Arkansas Department of Health, please.

A I'm Roselyn Smith, and I'm the Arkansas Department

of Health inspector with the cosmetology.

Q You may have to speak up just a little bit, because

I've got a head cold and I -- as my wife said, a lesser

man would be dead, but I don't think she was serious

about that, I think that was wishful thinking on her

part.

Roselyn, can you turn to Page 9 of the documents in

front of you.

A Yes, sir.

Q Do you have that?

A (Nodding head up and down.)

Q Is that your signature at the top right of that

document there?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, did you have occasion, then, to visit the

Preston's Hair and Body -- Body Salon on April 1st of

this year?
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A Yes, sir.

Q Can you tell the members of the committee what you

found during the course of your inspection?

A The first one I found was no health and safety rules

was posted in the reception area.  The second one was the

trashcan with no lid.

Q And you made a picture, I think, Roselyn; is that

correct?  Is this the picture that's made of that?

A Yes, sir.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And that would

be referring to the photograph on Page 10?

MR. HOGAN:  Page 10 of the documents.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Roselyn, did you talk to Ms. Eastep that day?

A Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.

Q Did Lynn tell you that that trashcan was something

that she was just using and that -- I understand her

testimony today would be that she would remove that can

and put it in an enclosed area after she had finished

using it.  Did she tell you that that day or --

A No, sir.

Q And so your observations when you investigated

the -- the salon was that the can was just there

underneath the -- the trap underneath the sink, right?

A Yes.
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Q Did -- did they tell you that the sink was leaking

or that the sink was not functioning or anything like

that?

A No.

Q Okay.  All right.  Because it looks like it's

underneath the trap.

Looking at the photograph there, Roselyn, I note

that to the right of it on the floor, appears to be some

paper and perhaps some hair.  Did you observe that as

well during the course of your inspection?

A I -- I saw it.  Yes, sir.

Q All right.  The violation, it says, "sufficient

number of covered waste receptacles."  Were there other

waste receptacles that were -- that were uncovered or was

this the only one?

A I don't remember.

Q You didn't note any others, though; correct?

A No, sir.

Q Your inspection report also mentions that all

supplies and instruments that cannot be disinfected are

disposed of immediately after use; correct?

A Yes.

Q Now, do you have -- let's turn to page, I guess it

would be Page 12, it's kind of hard to make out on my

copy, but it appears to be a crock pot or --
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MS. KERSEY:  Wax -- it's a wax pot.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Okay.  It looks like a crock pot but it's a wax pot.

Is that what it's called?

A It's a wax warmer.

Q Okay.  What does this -- what does this indicate?

A The pictures?

Q Yes.

A She had used sticks still on it or in it, in the

wax.

Q So they are just laying on top?  That's not normal?

A Not according to No. 21.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And what is

No. 21?

THE WITNESS:  That's, "All used supplies

and implements cannot -- that cannot be

disinfected," those sticks cannot be

disinfected, so they have to be discarded

immediately.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q So when I go in for my wax, which I do every other

week, and they would take these popsicle sticks and rub

that on my back --

A (Nodding head up and down.)

Q -- say if I had back hair, and then they would just
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rip that out by the roots and I would scream and cry;

correct?

A Correct.

Q And so they should not reuse these sticks --

A No, sir.

Q These popsicle sticks?

A (Shaking head from side to side.)

Q Did you talk to Lynn about that?

A I mentioned it.

Q Well -- well, did she say anything to you, like it

wasn't done?

A I don't recall exactly what she said.

Q Okay.  Now, I know we have -- I think there may be

an error on the last part here, if I'm correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q The last check marked is, "All used instruments

placed in labeled containers," you marked that.  That's

marked incorrectly, right?

A Yes.

Q What -- what was your intent?  And I know we may not

be able to take it up today, since Lynn did not have

notice of this, but what -- does this photograph indicate

what you're referring to, this photograph on page --

A It was supposed to be disinfected implements stored

in a covered place, but I -- I guess I marked it above
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it.

Q Okay.  But is this the photograph depicting what you

intended to mark?

A Yes.

Q This should have been stored somewhere --

A In a closed container.

Q So can you look at the photograph?  Is that a green

bean?

A I don't have it.  I don't have it.

MS. KERSEY:  She didn't give you the --

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q It looks like -- it's not a green bean, is it?

It looks like it.  That should have been stored -- 

A In a closed container?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Please give her

a copy of the photographs.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q You didn't see the photographs?

MS. KERSEY:  She didn't have it in front.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  She did not have

it in front of her.  We need you to have that

because that's what he's questioning you from.

MR. HOGAN:  Does -- does Ms. Eastep have

the photographs?

MS. KERSEY:  Yes, she does.
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BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q So it's your testimony, Roselyn, that this should

have been stored in a cabinet?

A In a covered container.

Q Yeah.  Did you -- do you remember observing places

in the salon where things like this could have been

stored or should have been stored?  Was it set up in such

a way that they had adequate storage for items like this?

A This was just on the shampoo bowl on the back, on

the back bar, but I do remember her saying that it goes

in a cabinet.

Q Inside the cabinet?

A (Indicating.)

Q Is there a -- you've indicated there is apparently

several people, licensees that work at this salon;

correct?

A Yes.

Q And I count seven there, including Ms. Eastep.  Did

you check to see if they were all licensed currently by

the -- by the committee?

A Yes.

Q Were they?

A Yes.

Q And is there anything further, Roselyn, you need to

make the committee aware of about your inspection?
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A No, sir.

MR. HOGAN:  I'll pass the witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Does

the -- do you have any questions for Ms. Smith,

Ms. Eastep?

MS. EASTEP:  I don't know that I have a

question, but I have some comments.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  And --

well, then, when it's your turn to -- to -- to

address the board, then I'll -- I'll give you

an opportunity to do that.  Right now we're

just taking questions for Ms. Smith.

Any questions by the board for Ms. Smith?

Okay.  All right.  Thank you.

All right.  Then you may call your next

witness.

MR. HOGAN:  I'm going to call Ms. Kersey,

but I'm going to wait, if I -- until after to

have her just -- I want to make a

recommendation -- 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  -- but I'll reserve the right

to call her back as a rebuttal witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  So that will complete our case
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at this point.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MS. STEELE:  I had a question of the

inspector.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

MS. STEELE:  Well, do you know what the

basket was used for?  Cotton balls and the

brushes and the -- and what is that?  That's on

the shampoo bowl?

THE WITNESS:  It looks like for the wax

area, I see the sticks.

MS. STEELE:  Oh.

THE WITNESS:  And --

MS. STEELE:  And a makeup brush?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. STEELE:  Okay.  Thank you.

MS. ANDERSON:  I have a question, please.

I would like to ask Ms. Eastep, did you have a

covered --

MS. KERSEY:  Not yet.

MS. ANDERSON:  Oh, excuse me.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Ms. Smith.  I

thought you had a question for Ms. Smith.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Ms. Smith -- oh,

no --
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MS. ANDERSON:  Ms. -- I can ask Ms. Smith

that.  Was there a cover on the counter for the

wax warmer?

THE WITNESS:  I don't remember --

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  -- seeing one.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  All

right.  And if there are no further questions

for Ms. Smith at this time or Ms. Kersey, then

Ms. Eastep, this is your opportunity to address

the board.

WHEREUPON, 

LYNN EASTEP, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT TESTIMONY 

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  For the trashcan

that's under the sink, I do not have a leak in

my shampoo bowl.  The cabinet is to the right

of the bowl, and we open the cabinet that is

under the cabinet and we pull the trashcan out

and it sits there while we're taking out our

foils to keep from dripping water everywhere
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from the foils.  And that is not hair that's on

the floor, that -- it's stained concrete and

that's just color, you know, intense color

that's in the concrete on the floor.  The piece

of paper that is on the floor, it may be a wax

strip from pulling off, so that is correct that

that is on the floor.

I do have a cover for my wax pot and it

sets right by the wax pot.  The sticks that

were there, I had just got through doing a

color and a wax.  When she came into the salon,

she came straight in, walked straight to the

back, did her thing, went to the restroom, did

the rooms, did the things.  I honestly did

not -- I had never met her before, did not know

who she was.  I was finishing my customer from

the foil and the eyebrow wax, and when I went

to check my customer out and I came back, she

then told me that I needed to have the trashcan

in a covered area.  And I told her that the

cabinet, which I have pictures of, both

trashcans have two cabinets on each side, there

is three shampoo bowls and there is a middle

between these two and then these two, and on

the side of that there is a cabinet.  And those
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cabinets to the right and the left, there was

an area that is a waxing -- it's a door and we

keep all of our waxings stuff in there.  In

that basket there is cotton balls and sticks.

And the thing that looks like a green bean,

that is a container that my tweezers sit in

that is then covered and that is sanitary, and

the spray, it's a bottle of spray that we

sanitize stuff as we use it.  

I follow all my procedures that I'm

supposed to.  Been in business for 25 years,

never once have I ever got wrote up or had any

kind of problems with the state board, and I

keep a clean salon.

MR. HOGAN:  Lynn, can you pass around that

photograph that you have so the members of the

committee can see it?  These are -- these are

the cabinets, I guess, that you've got --

THE WITNESS:  Do I just pass it around?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Yeah.  Just pass

it around and just -- and show how --

describe --

MR. HOGAN:  We don't necessarily have a

way to make a copy of that.

THE WITNESS:  The way the cabinet goes
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like that, and that's the -- that's for hair

and that is a closed container that I keep.

And if you'll -- and that's the cabinet.  And

then to the right and the left of each shampoo

bowl, and that's where all of the wax and stuff

is, and that's the lid and that's where the wax

pot sets.  So if you will just -- you can scan.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  You might want

to explain to this side like you explained to

that side, Ms. Eastep.  You might want

to explain -- well, I wasn't looking at it at

the time so I just --

Okay, the rest of the board members, or

Ms. Kersey, if you will --

MS. KERSEY:  Yeah, if you will just --

MR. HOGAN:  We may ask you to email them

to Teri -- 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Right.

MR. HOGAN:  -- and then so that we can

supplement the record with them.

MS. KERSEY:  Then you can -- you can print

them.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  That's the lid that

stays on the wax pot when it's not in use,

that's the cabinet we have on one of the
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shampoo bowls, and then on the other side at

the end of the shampoo bowls, the same cabinet,

towels at the bottom and it's closed, and

that's the left cabinet.  The trashcan is on

the right side and then a trashcan on the left

side.  We pull it out when we're doing -- this

is the shampoo, we pull it out to put the foils

in, and that's why it was by the -- by the

shampoo bowl.  This is where -- this is our

closed container that we keep hair in when we

sweep the hair, we keep it separate.  That's

another container that sets up front, and it is

a closed container.  And I really wasn't aware

of how many closed containers or trashcans that

I was actually supposed to have in my salon.

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Can you tell me right quick, you -- you said that

you -- you brought the trashcan out when you -- to --

to -- to stop the dripping from --

A There is no dripping.

Q No, not from the sink.  I meant from the foils or

something?

A Foils.  

Thank you.
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Q Foils?  And those are for what you put on hair, to

highlight hair or whatever?

A Yes, sir.

Q So are you saying that there were foils on top of

the sink at this time that if had it been photographed,

it would have shown that --

A No, sir.  The foil -- we don't lay the foils on top

of the sink, we pull the trashcan out, when we're taking

out the foils, they lay inside the sink, and when I've

taken them all out of the head of the hair and they are

in the sink, I gather them up and then I put them in the

trashcan -- 

Q Okay.  

A -- and then the trashcan goes back into the cabinet.

Q I don't -- I don't see anything like that in the

trashcan, and that's why I was asking.

A We empty the trashcan during the day.  Whenever we

do a color, it goes into the closed container, we try to

keep that trashcan -- because I don't want it in the

cabinet with all the stuff, so it's very possible that --

and I don't even know -- first, I don't even know what

day that was on, it depends on the day or the time.  I

mean, I'm not -- the trashcan is not going to be

overflowing.  I try to keep my trashcans emptied into the

big trashcan.
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Q Okay.  And I'm not saying it's that.  I'm just

trying to get an idea for the time limit.  It --

basically what you're saying, the only time you would use

it in this state would be when you were doing a --

A An eyebrow wax with the papers, the cotton balls,

foils.

Q And it doesn't look like there is anything that

would indicate, you know, the use of that's occurred very

near in time to when this picture was taken, and that's

what I was asking about.  You know, based on your

testimony, you would have -- normally, your normal

procedure would be to keep this locked and stored in

a -- in a cabinet, that's what you're testifying now?  

A Until I have a customer --

Q But there are exceptions --

A -- and when she came in I was doing a foil color,

and I had taken down my customer and taken -- gone to the

front to check my client out while she was in the back

doing her picture taking and writing me up.  Because when

I got done checking out my customer, I went to the back

to clean up, and she was back there and that's when she

told me that, did I realize that I needed to keep my

trashcan with a lid on it, and I told her -- and that's

when I told her that I kept my trashcan in the cabinet.

And then also she told me about the waxing basket, and I
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showed her the cabinet that that goes in as well.

Q So you had a customer that you would have been doing

the foil stuff on and you took her to the back, is that

for drying her hair or what?

A Took her back to my station.

Q To your station?

A It was just a partial foil.  All I did was put in,

you know, just five or six foils on the top of her head.

Q Would you have been also doing a wax on that

customer?

A Yes, sir.  I did an eyebrow wax on her as well.

Q And that's why these sticks are there at that -- at

the -- at the time this photograph was taken?  You're

saying that --

A Yes, sir.  Because that was done on the -- one end

of the shampoo bowl, because we have a waxing area to the

right where I've got a processing area and a lay down

chair, and we do the waxing there.

Q Okay.  So you were utilizing this at the time she

came in, is what you're saying?

A Yes, sir.  I had already gotten my customer up from

the shampoo bowl and taken her to the front.  In the

meantime, she came in and straight in -- I didn't know

who she -- even who she was, I had never met her before

from the state board.  Usually, I believe it's Vera is
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usually the one that comes into the salon.

Q Okay.  You said you've been licensed, you've -- how

long have you had the salon over on Kiehl?

A Twenty-five years and I've done hair for 30.

Q Okay.  And you've never had any violations?

A The violations that I've had is for this trash --

for a trashcan not being in a covered container, and I --

when I come in -- I mean, before they told me it was fine

for it to stay in the cabinet, and if I pulled it out and

then stuck it back in the cabinet, then I didn't need a

lid on it.  I mean, in a perfect world I guess having a

lid, but I'm just not -- I don't like trashcans sitting

around so that's why we had the cabinet made with the

doors so we would just stick it back in the cabinet, and

I've been told that was fine to put it back in there when

it wasn't in use.  And we -- I mean, I've never had, you

know, when it went from the cosmetology board how it was

until now, I mean, I see a board member once a year and

it's usually around this time, you know, February, March,

April, so it's -- and you know, there is no books that's

sent out, no -- when regulations change, I mean, we don't

have this.  And as far as me having a paper or something

with sanitary something that I'm supposed to have posted

in my sitting area, I have no idea what that even is, and

I've had the salon this long and I couldn't tell you what
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that is.

Q So you've never had health and safety --

A No, sir.  I don't even know what that is.

Q Instructions?

A I mean, except for my cosmetology book that I got

when I got out of cosmetology school and they didn't say

how we're supposed to have things in our salon.

Q Now, I thought you had previously said that you had

never had any violations, but it sounds like you're

saying you have had violations for the trashcan?

A No, just on the -- I've been -- it wasn't a

violation -- 

Q Okay.

A -- I was just told.  You know, I was told once

before that the trashcan needed to have a lid, and I said

that usually goes in the cabinet, and then they said that

was fine, as long as it stayed in the cabinet, but I've

never been wrote up.

Q So they never wrote you up for that?

A Never had to do this before.

Q Okay.  That's fine.  That's fine.

All right.  This -- and I'm sorry, it's a lot of

this, and I'm kind of ignorant to what we're doing.  But

what -- what is inside this basket of yours?  Is that

some kind of a spray?  And is that alcohol or --
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A That -- that -- yes, sir, it's a sanitizing -- it's

a sanitizing spray.  It's a germicidal, it's -- it

kills -- there's a whole list of germs that it kills.

And we just mix it with water, it's a concentrated

product we put in a spray bottle and we spray things

after, you know, the area that we're at.

Q So that's not used on an individual?

A No, sir.  It's not.

Q That's used in an area?

A No, sir.

Q And beside that, what is that?  Looks like some kind

of -- right beside that spray?

A It's a mirror.  A little round black mirror.

Q A mirror.  And then you have a makeup brush there.

Do you use -- do you use that on individuals or is that

something that might be alcohol or do you know?

A No, sir.  Actually, I'm really not sure why that is

in the basket.  We don't -- I don't know why that makeup

brush would be in the basket.

Q And then you have --

A I've got one girl that actually puts powder -- I'm

not real sure, she comes in and puts -- I don't know how

to answer that.

Q And the cotton balls, they appear to be just out

there inside this basket?
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A This basket gets broke down every single Saturday.

The basket gets emptied, sanitized, and refilled.

It's -- I mean -- I mean, and this basket usually gets

put back into the cabinet and into a sanitary area.

It's -- you know, it's not dirty, by no means.

Q I'm just saying, you know, cotton balls, I know they

collect everything, it seems like, in the air, if there

were hair or anything like that could easily be collected

on cotton balls, having somebody else's -- if it's right

behind where you're cutting hair, I guess.

A It's not behind, it's in a total separate room.

Q Oh, okay.  And then beside that, there's another --

that looks like another little brush with a longer handle

on it.  Is that what that is, or is that something --

A Yes, sir.  It's to comb eyebrows with, it has a

little comb on one end of it.

Q Okay.  So you use that on your customers too?

A Yes, sir, but we wash it and we spray it with a

sanitizer after every single use.  And the same thing we

do with our tweezers that are in that little green thing

that you said looked like a green bean -- 

Q Yeah.

A -- that's a little container, a little round

cylinder and it's green and the tweezers are green and it

sets in that little cylinder, it's a pouch.
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Q Okay.  So that's -- those tweezers, obviously, you

clean after every use?

A After every single use and they are sprayed.

Q And you sanitize those -- you sanitize those after

every use?

A Yes, sir, I do.

Q And then obviously they were just sitting out here

at the time?

A They weren't sitting out, they were in their

cylinder.

Q Okay.  Do you clean the cylinder too that they are

going into?

A Well, if they are cleaned every time they go into

the cylinder, I would --

Q So you don't?  You don't see any reason to have to

do that?

A (Shaking head from side to side.)

Q I'm just asking.

A No, sir.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Okay.  I don't have any

further questions.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Does

the board have any questions for Ms. Eastep?

MS. STEELE:  I do.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.
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MS. STEELE:  You have a pre and post

treatment for your waxing?

THE WITNESS:  As far as lotions?

MS. STEELE:  Uh-huh, yes.

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  In the cabinet

there were several pump bottles that were in

the cabinet and we pull those out and we'll

squirt them onto a cotton ball, but they go

back in the cabinet.  But those weren't sitting

out and they don't sit in the basket, they're

in the cabinet.

MS. STEELE:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Any other

questions?

MS. FORD:  I do.  I have a question about

the -- about the trashcan.

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. FORD:  And I'm -- I have a similar

cabinet, so I guess my question would be, with

it being pushed so far under the shampoo

bowl --

THE WITNESS:  Okay.

MS. FORD:  -- I don't know how that -- and

I don't know how to put it in a question, but

if I were using it, I would sit it out, but it
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looks more stored, from the picture.  It looks

like it's being stored under the sink versus

being pulled out from the cabinet that you

showed.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  That -- the -- the

area --

MS. FORD:  And I don't see -- if you just

finished a client, I don't see any foils or

anything in the trashcan.  And why -- if you

were done with the client, why wouldn't it go

back in the cabinet after use?

THE WITNESS:  Because I normally take my

client to the front and check them out, because

I'm real customer service oriented, so I check

my customer out and then I clean my mess up.  I

don't make my client wait so then I clean my

mess up and then when they are coming on a

lunch hour.

And as far as it being stored, it -- it's

not stored there.  I mean it truly does go

under the cabinet.  And with the length of

these two tables, I mean, you have to visionary

a shampoo bowl in the middle, a shampoo bowl

here, there's a cabinet between the shampoo

bowl that's here and all we do is pull it out.
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We shut the door and it sets there because it's

easier and it's not in our way, we get it and

put it back in the cabinet after we're done

with our customer.  You know, is there times

that it sits out, yeah, you know, maybe a

couple of customers, yes.  I mean, I'm not

going to sit here and act like that I put it up

every single time because I don't, you know.

But it's where the trashcan goes and we try to,

as often as we can, to make sure we clean our

messes, and that's just how it is in the salon,

and we all know to put the stuff back in the

cabinet, nothing sits out like that, and we try

to put things up as quickly as we can without

making our clients wait on us to clean up after

ourselves.

MS. FORD:  And my -- my last question is

with the wax sticks.

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. FORD:  Is there any particular reason

why there -- they're used and if they are on --

on the stick, there is an obvious drip going

back into the container.

THE WITNESS:  They are sitting off to the

side, they are not in the wax pot.  And, yes,
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they are used and I just set them on the edge

of it so that when I come back, that I can take

the sticks and throw them in the trashcan, you

know, which it's on the other side.  Because,

like I said, the waxing area is to the end in

our processing where the dryers and there's a

lay down chair right there where the cabinet

is, and the trashcan is to the middle of the

shampoo bowl and that cabinet.

MS. FORD:  Well, I mean, in the picture I

could see where the sticks are going across the

actual wax, and, I mean, clearly in the

picture, it's showing that some of the wax

underneath is dripping back, and that's making

the -- the wax unsanitary.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.

MS. FORD:  Okay.  Do you have this

picture?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, I see it, I do

have the picture, and it's going from one end

and laying to the other side of the --

MS. FORD:  Yes, so it -- 

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, I do see that.

MS. FORD:  -- so this stick is going

across the wax container, the wax itself.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



  39

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Any

more questions?

Yes, ma'am.

MS. JACKSON:  So it only took you two

sticks to wax two eyebrows?

THE WITNESS:  I did the center of an

eyebrow.

MS. JACKSON:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Any other

questions?

Did you -- did you get to question

Ms. Kersey?

MR. HOGAN:  No.  I was going to call her

after we are finished with this witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Okay.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Do you have a trashcan near

your wax area?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Why weren't you disposing

of them as you were using them, so that --

THE WITNESS:  Because --

MS. SULLIVAN:  -- you didn't have to lay

it back on top so that it could drip wax back

in?
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THE WITNESS:  Because at the time you can

see in the picture that this is to the right of

the things.  The trashcan is over here, I would

have to lean over the sink and the customer and

get up and walk around and I was done, so I

just laid them there so that I could go take

care of my client and check her out, and I was

coming back to clean my mess up when she came

in and when I went back there.

MR. HOGAN:  That's the -- do you have

anything further that you wanted to tell --

THE WITNESS:  (Shaking head from side to

side.)

MR. HOGAN:  Do you feel like you've been

able to tell the committee --

THE WITNESS:  No, sir, I'm finished.

MR. HOGAN:  I want to just call Ms. Kersey

briefly.

WHEREUPON, 

KELLI KERSEY, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  
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Q State your name and your position with the

department.

A Kelli Kersey, section chief, Arkansas Department of

Health Cosmetology Section.

Q As the section chief, is it part of your

responsibility to review the inspection records and

investigations by your inspectors?

A Yes, sir.

Q Have you reviewed all of the documents in this case

and discussed this matter with Ms. Smith, your inspector?

A Yes, sir.

Q Do you have, based upon that, and your review of

those records and your knowledge of the rules and the

statutes, do you have a recommendation that you would

like to make for the committee today?

A We have -- before we reviewed them, we had

recommended $200.  But since the wrong check was marked

on the inspection sheet for the covered stuff, we're just

recommending 150.

Q So your recommendation is a violation of the -- of

this -- make sure I'm correct here.  Your recommendation

is that there are -- that the committee should find three

violations; correct?

A Correct.

Q And $50 should be assessed for each of those

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



  42

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

violations?

A Correct.

MR. HOGAN:  For $150.  

All right.  I'll pass the witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Does

the board have any questions for Ms. Kersey?

Do you have any questions for Ms. Kersey,

Ms. Eastep?  Questions for Ms. Kersey?

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. EASTEP:  

Q So you're saying that I'm still going to get fined

$50 for each violation.  And what are going to be those

violations?

A Well, that's our recommendations.  I mean, that's

just my recommendation to them.

MR. HOGAN:  She's asking you about the

three violations.  What are they?

BY MS. EASTEP:  

Q Right.

A The health and safety not posted, the trashcan not

covered, and the wax sticks on top of the wax pot.

Q What sanitation?  I mean, I don't under -- I still

don't understand the whole sanitation log or and -- I

mean I don't --

A The health and safety rules?
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Q Yes.  I mean, is that in a book I'm supposed to have

in the sitting area?  I mean what is that?

A Well, we have three different -- we have health and

safety rules --

MR. HOGAN:  No, she is asking about

what -- I think there is an example.

THE WITNESS:  What are they?  

MR. HOGAN:  I think there is an example.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

BY MS. EASTEP:  

Q Okay.  And that is supposed to be where?

A Posted in the reception area.

MR. TABB:  Posted in the reception area.

BY MS. EASTEP:  

Q Like on a -- just laying around or hanging on a wall

or --

A Just so the public can see it.  Yes.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Can we -- can we talk to

her?

MR. HOGAN:  Yeah.

MS. SULLIVAN:  If you -- you know where

you post your salon license?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. SULLIVAN:  You can post it with that

and you can get those online.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



  44

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

MS. EASTEP:  Okay.  So my license is just

in a little Plexiglas thing that sits on my

counter, just sit in the back -- I mean how are

people -- I mean is it for people to read or to

look at or is it just for the board to come in

to make sure that I have it or --

MS. SULLIVAN:  Just to make sure that

you're aware and that your clients can be aware

too that you know all the health and safety

rules.

MS. EASTEP:  Okay.

MS. ANDERSON:  It's just that we are -- we

are governing the health and safety of the

public, just like you are to protect it in your

salon or your spa or where ever you're at in

business.  And so these are posted on the

website, you can copy them off from your

website, the inspector always has a copy of

those, and the law states that it must be

posted.  So it is in the rules and regulations

as well as in the law.  So it says it must be

posted, because we are in the -- we are

protecting the consumer so you, as -- just like

I am in my school, she is in her school, they

are in their salons, their spas, we are all
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protecting the consumer, so those are posted

for the protection of the consumer, which has

things like trashcans and things, that's where

all of that is found.

MR. HOGAN:  Here is a copy of the rules,

if you're not familiar with them.  It's on

Page -- Rule 5.1B, it says a copy of the health

and safety rules shall be conspicuously posted

in reception areas of establishments,

classrooms and schools.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Ms. Ford?

MS. FORD:  I have a question for

Ms. Kersey.

Ms. Kersey, from your knowledge, how long

has that rule been in effect?

THE WITNESS:  Well, I -- I've been a

cosmetologist for 27 years, and every salon

that I worked in, they were always posted.  So,

I mean, at least 27 -- the 27 years I've --

that's my knowledge; so --

MS. FORD:  I also have another question

for Ms. Kersey.

Whose responsibility is it, is it the

section or the cosmetology section's

responsibility to keep every single stylist and
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instructor in the industry informed, or is it

the responsibility of the individual to keep up

with rules, regulations, and laws?

THE WITNESS:  It would be the individuals.

We have made lots of efforts trying to get

rules and regs and health and safety to as many

salons as we can, especially with us having new

inspectors.  We -- they have copies of the

health and safety and they have copies of the

rules and regs that we have handed out to many,

many salons.  So it would be the individual

salon owner, individual practitioner.

MS. FORD:  And is there a rule or a law

that states that?

THE WITNESS:  That it's their

responsibility?

MS. FORD:  Yes.

THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I'm not sure exactly

which one it is, but it's --

BY MS. EASTEP:  

Q Okay.  May I say something?  With that -- with her

saying that, with the people, the board that comes by my

salon once a year, that I may see them once a year, and

it might be every couple of years when I see them, if

I've never -- and I've never, never had this, no one has
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ever told me that I needed to have this.  And if I had

been wrote up for not having this, would you not have

record of that, that I got wrote up for not having it?

Or do you guys not check this all the time or do you just

kind of check things that you need to check for that time

or do you just check certain things or -- I mean do you

check -- do you have a list that you go by when you come

into a salon that you check every single thing or just --

I mean how do you --

A Yes.  That's our list.

MR. HOGAN:  Let me -- let me just, that's

like 50 questions.  Let's just -- just -- can

you just narrow it to one question for

Ms. Kersey?

BY MS. EASTEP:  

Q Have I -- do you have paper that I've been wrote up

before for not having this?

A No.  I do not have -- I don't have the last

inspection, either, though in front of me, I don't have

the previous inspection.

Q Okay.  I mean now that I know that I'm supposed to

have this, I can promise you that I will put it in the --

in the -- you know, post it in my sitting area, if that's

where I'm supposed to keep it.  I mean, I'm a rule

follower, so, I mean, if I'm supposed to keep it there, I
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mean, I will definitely have it.  But I was never -- I've

never -- I mean I know that there is rules and

regulations, but I never knew that I needed to have one

posted or a book or anything like that.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Ms. -- Ms. Kersey, for my edification, is there

a -- a place, a site, a book, a website, or a

place that a cosmetologist can go to to keep

themselves apprized of any new rules or

regulations or just, as someone who is not in

the industry just asking, is there a --

THE WITNESS:  Yes, our website, just

Arkansas.gov/cos, for cosmetology, because all

of our health and safety, rules and regulations

and statutes are on there.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

right.  Thank you.

Any other questions by the board or for

Ms. Kersey, for Ms. Eastep, or for Ms. Smith?

Oh, you did say you had some other

questions you might want to ask Ms. Kersey.

MR. HOGAN:  No.  I think that's -- as long

as everybody understands.  Once the board

starts going into deliberations, you cannot ask

any other questions of the boards or the
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witnesses or anything like that, so this is

your --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Right.  Right.

This is your opportunity.

MR. HOGAN:  -- this is your last

opportunity, if there is anything else you want

to say before the committee -- before they

deliberate and make a decision, this is your

last chance to do that.

MS. EASTEP:  I have nothing to say.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Then that will complete

our case and, again, we would recommend that a

finding that there were three violations as set

out in the inspection report and that the

penalty be $150, or $50 per each violations.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  The

board will go into deliberations, off the

record, and you may, of course, remain present,

but no further comments to the board during

deliberations.  We're off the record.

(WHEREUPON, the Committee retired to 

deliberate, off the record, from 9:48 a.m. to 

9:54 a.m. and returned with the following 

decision:) 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.
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We're back on the record before the cosmetology

board in the matter of Preston's Hair Salon.

The board has deliberated and is now ready to

entertain a motion with respect to disposition

of this case.  And I'll turn it over to the

chairman.

MS. ANDERSON:  Yes.  And do we have a

motion in regard to the Preston's Hair and Body

Salon for these violations?

MS. JACKSON:  I make a motion to go with

the recommended fines set by the Department of

Health --

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  All right.

MS. JACKSON:  -- for 150.

MS. ANDERSON:  For 150.  Okay.

MS. FORD:  I second it.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  So Angela has made

the motion and Kim has seconded.  All those in

favor, I'll call on you individually, Adrian?

MR. TABB:  Aye.

MS. ANDERSON:  Cynthia?

MS. STEELE:  Aye.

MS. PECK:  Aye.

MS. JACKSON:  Aye.

MS. FORD:  Aye.
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MS. SULLIVAN:  Aye.

MS. ANDERSON:  The committee votes

unanimously.

Thank you.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

right.  The board -- the board's action today

will be put in written form and it will be sent

to you, Ms. Eastep, and you will have the right

to appeal that if you so desire, and it will be

explained to you in the written decision how to

appeal.

Thank you for being here today and that

concludes this matter.

(WHEREUPON, at 9:54 a.m., the 

above-entitled proceedings were concluded.) 

---o--- 

MS. ANDERSON:  We need to take a break. 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Five

minutes?  Five minutes.

(WHEREUPON, a break was held from 

9:55 a.m. to 10:04 a.m.) 
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ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING 

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PETITIONER 

v. 

2121 THE COLOR SALON, INC. RESPONDENT 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  We are on

the record today before the Arkansas

Cosmetology Board, In The Matter of 2121 Color

Salon.  And representing the salon are -- and

you have to give me your names.  I'm sorry.

MR. YOUNG:  It's Elliott Young.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Elliott Young.

Are you the owner?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  And?

MR. KING:  Joshua King, Manager.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Josh?

MR. KING:  King.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  King.  The

manager.  Okay.  And?

MS. YOUNG:  Nancy Young, Stylist/Owner.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Nancy Young.

Okay.  All right.

Of course, and representing the board is

Attorney Rick Hogan.  And, Mr. Hogan, will you

be presenting testimony today?
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MR. HOGAN:  We will.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And who are --

MR. HOGAN:  Chris and Kelli.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  Yeah.  We'll go ahead and,

Ken, you'll need to be sworn, just in case.

They both were at the site.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

right.

Chris, Kelli, and Ken, as well as

Mr. Elliott, Josh, and Ms. Nancy, if you will

raise your right hand, I'll swear you in.

(WHEREUPON, the witnesses were sworn by

the Hearing Officer.)

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  And

with respect to documents that you want the

board to consider this morning?

MR. HOGAN:  We do have nine pages, I think

Mr. Elliott and the others have seen those,

includes the inspection report as well as the

Order and Notice of Hearing today.  We would

ask that that be admitted as the Board's

Exhibit No. 1 for the record.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Okay.  And did you have -- do you have any
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objection to that Mr. Young or Ms. Young or --

MR. YOUNG:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

right.  You have to say it out loud so the

court reporter can hear you.

MR. YOUNG:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  There

being no objection, then those the nine-page

document -- the nine-page exhibit will be

entered into the record.

(WHEREUPON, Board's Exhibit No. 1 was 

received in evidence.) 

MR. HOGAN:  We would ask the committee be

able to take notice of the rules and

regulations and statutes governing the practice

of cosmetology in Arkansas.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  All

right.  The rules and regulations and the

statutes governing the cosmetology practice

will be -- we'll take judicial notice of those

as well and they will become part of the

record.

All right.  You may call your first

witness.

MR. HOGAN:  I -- I think we talked
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briefly, but Mr. Young, did y'all have any

documentation or anything that you wanted to --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Oh, I'm sorry.

MR. HOGAN:  -- to make the board aware of

before we get -- is there anything in addition

to what we provided that you need to --

MR. YOUNG:  No.

MR. HOGAN:  You're okay?

MR. YOUNG:  (Nodding head up and down.)

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  We're going to call

Chris.

WHEREUPON, 

CHRIS NICKLAUS, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Chris, could you state your name for the record and

your position with the Arkansas Department of Health?

A Yes.

Chris Nicklaus, I'm an inspector for the Arkansas

Department of Health for Cosmetology.

Q Chris, did you have occasion to inspect the 2121

Color Salon located over on Cantrell Road here in Little
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Rock?

A Yes.

Q When did you go in there?  What --

A 4/17/14.

Q Okay.  Chris, and I'm looking at Page 6 in this

packet of information.  This appears to be an inspection

report.  And is that your signature at the top right-hand

corner of that report?

A Yes.

Q And that was signed also by Mr. King, who is here

today; correct?

A Correct.

Q Is Mr. King who you talked with that day when you

went into the salon?

A Yes.

Q Chris, in the top right-hand corner it also has

12/31/13, another date there by the salon license.  What

is that date referring to?

A That is when their establishment license expired.

Q Okay.  So at the time you visited the salon in April

of this year, their salon license was not current; is

that correct?

A Correct.

Q Did you note that on your inspection report?

A Yes.
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Q Now, did they have a license posted in the

establishment, just one that was not current, or did they

have a license at all that was posted?  Salon license

posted in this establishment?  I notice you note on --

A I'm reading -- 

Q -- 5.1(B)(3) all posted license --

A Yes, it was posted and it was not current.

Q It was not current.

Okay.  Now, I believe under No. 8, which starts,

"floor mats cleaned and repaired," that's a mistake, it's

marked twice and it should be once; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q What did you find --

MS. KERSEY:  Well, it should be marked

twice, we just charged them twice and it

shouldn't -- they shouldn't have been charged

twice.

I'm sorry.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Ms. --

MS. KERSEY:  I'm sorry.  Yeah.  I'm sorry

I butted in there.

MR. HOGAN:  I think that was out of order.

MS. KERSEY:  I know.  I know.  Objection.

Somebody object.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  That was
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Ms. Kersey for the record speaking.

MR. HOGAN:  Yeah.

MS. KERSEY:  I'm sorry.  Now he's just all

messed up.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q I -- Chris, before Ms. Kersey rudely interrupted

your testimony, can you describe what it means in No. 8

there, what exactly did you find and observe that day?

A For No. 8, I marked "floors, mats clean and

repaired," they had flooring downstairs by a register and

that the floor had caved in.  "Ceilings clean and

repaired," in their dispensary, they had ceiling tiles

missing or broken that was exposing insulation and

wiring, if I do recall.

Q All right, sir.  These were all areas that were open

to the public; is that correct?

A The downstairs area and also the flooring in the

reception area was not in good repair.

Q And these were tiles or what kind of flooring was

this that was broken?  Do you remember?

A If I remember, I think it was wood flooring, if I

remember right.

Q Wood flooring?

Now, you've also marked "a sufficient number of

covered waste receptacles."  Can you explain that?
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A Yes.  They had one or two, I think it was one

trashcan in a working area that did not have a lid, or a

cover.

Q And you also marked No. 17, you've marked that twice

as well.  Tell the members of the committee what you

found regarding that.

A There were a set of four or five shampoo bowls, I

can't remember exactly how many, but they were not

cleaned or disinfected after every customer.  They had

conditioner or shampoo laying in it along with hair.

Q Were there customers in the establishment at the

time that you were there?  Were there customers being --

A Yes.

Q Okay.  The -- these particular shampoo bowls that

you referred to, were they at those particular bowls that

were being used?

A There were customers at them at some point; yes.

Q So I guess what I'm asking, was -- was it being

utilized or was it not being utilized and it had not been

cleaned or what?

A They had been utilized while I was in the salon.

Q And they had not been cleaned when they did --

A Correct.

Q Seems like somebody should have a reasonable time to

clean up after someone uses the shampoo?
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A Right.

Q Are you -- are you saying that you noted it right

after they did it and you marked it as not being clean?

A Correct.

Q Okay.  No. 24, it's got, "liquid, creams stored and

labeled in clean closed containers."  What was -- what

did you find in that regard?

A They had a waxing station -- I'm sorry, a waxing

station on the second floor of the salon that they did

not have their cotton balls and waxing strips in a

covered container.

Q Okay.  Chris, did you talk to Mr. King about any or

all of these things that you found?

A Yes.  I walked Josh around and pointed everything

out to him.

Q Did he give you an explanation of why they were not

done properly or did he have any kind of reason for

the -- an answer to the thing, since you had marked it?

A I honestly can't recall.

Q Would you have noted it had he -- would you put that

on your inspection report had he mentioned something in

defense of these particular citations?

A Yes.

Q On the right-hand corner and on the next page --

this appears to be a fairly large salon.
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Now, there is a salon license and then there is a

practitioner's license.  So were all of the practitioners

that were there, and I count -- let's see, 11, I believe?

A Correct.

Q Were all 11 of those folks currently licensed?  Were

their licenses in good standing?

A One was not, but she was not working at that point.

Q On Page 7, did you indicate in the left-hand margin,

NW, by those people who were not working?

A Correct.

Q And that was Emily Morris, Lindsey Madden, and

Ashley Swain?

A Correct.

Q The others, all of the people that were there and

working, were they currently licensed the day you

inspected the facility?

A Yes.

Q Chris, is there anything else you would like to make

the committee aware of regarding your inspection?

A I did have pictures when I went to the salon, but

after I deleted all of the files off of my phone, I

accidentally deleted the pictures before I emailed them.

I'm sorry.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Well, then that -- I'll

reserve the right to call Ms. Kersey back in
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rebuttal, if I may.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  All

right.  Mr. Young or Mr. or Mrs. Young or -- do

you all have any questions specifically for

Mr. Nicklaus?

MR. YOUNG:  Yeah.  I do.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. YOUNG:  

Q On No. 13, speak -- the number of covered waste

receptacles, how many of them -- how many am I supposed

to have in my salon?

A I don't know that there is a number.  I mean just --

Q So is it --

A -- any -- 

Q So maybe the ones that I already have could be

sufficient enough, or is there --

A Yeah.  They just need to have lids on them.

Q Just need to have their lids on them?  Okay.

A Yes.

Q And does it also say -- I mean, our shampoo bowls

are cleaned before each use.  So as the clients that you

saw in the chair, they were getting shampooed, and there

was not another client that was in the same shampoo bowl.

Could it be safe to assume that they -- the next client
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coming in, before they were shampooed, the bowl could

be -- could have been cleaned?

A Honestly, it -- they were very busy that day, and I

saw several people at the shampoo bowls.  I don't know if

they were cleaned before or after each client got done --

Q So you're not sure --

A -- but every time I walked by, the shampoo bowls

were dirty.

Q So you're not sure, though, that -- you said --

A Correct.

Q -- that you're not sure?

A Correct.

Q Okay.  So they could have been cleaned before.

MR. YOUNG:  Do you have any questions?

MR. KING:  No.  That was going to be mine.

MR. YOUNG:  No other questions.

MR. KING:  I don't have any.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  You don't have

any other questions?

Okay.  All right.

MR. HOGAN:  If I may -- well, I guess,

members of the committee may have a question.

I apologize.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Right.  Does any

committee members have any questions for
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Mr. Nicklaus?

Okay.  Mr. --

MR. HOGAN:  I'm going to go ahead and call

Mr. Young.  I think it will shorten it a little

bit --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  -- if I can call him as a

witness to testify.  

Mr. Young?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Which --

oh, Mr. Young.  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  I'm sorry.  Elliott Young.

WHEREUPON, 

ELLIOTT YOUNG, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Mr. Young, you've seen the inspection report;

correct?

A Yes, sir, I have.

Q It -- it appears that the salon license had expired

in -- in December of last year?

A (Nodding head up and down.)
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Q Can you tell the members of the committee why it had

not been renewed?

A I was just an error on my part.  I take full

responsibility for it.  You know, we don't -- we don't --

we try and obey by all the laws that we -- that the board

has -- or the state has -- has given us, and -- and in

my -- in my error -- own error, in my efforts to try and

be sure that all my salon -- my employees there are

licensed, I failed, I made a mistake, and -- and failed,

this was one bill that got in my stack that apparently I

didn't pay.  I assume that when Mr. Nicklaus brought it

to our attention, and I was still under the assumption

that I had paid it and maybe I had forgotten to post it.

When I came down here and realized that it wasn't, I

immediately paid it, which I do have a receipt for here.

Q And that's what I was going to ask.  You have since

renewed your licensing; correct?

A Yes, I have.

Q When did you do it?

A I think it was Thursday or Friday.

Q Of last week?

A I was notified of this hearing, I think it was

Wednesday, and the next opportunity that I had on my

schedule was Thursday or Friday, I think it was Thursday,

and I went down immediately and paid the -- the -- the
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salon license.  Again, it was just a -- a -- maybe it was

just a bill in there that I just -- I did not see or

actually had thrown away.  My apologies to the board.  I

wasn't trying to keep from paying the -- the fine.

Q It appears that the Order and Notice of Hearing had

been sent out in April of -- and I -- I guess that was

the other question I had was, when you received the Order

and Notice of today's hearing, how long after that before

you actually went and got your license?

A I believe it was one day.

Q Was it?

A The -- the phone call I got on Wednesday, sir, was

to -- to -- to verify that I had received this, and I --

and they said they had gotten a certified mail returned

that they had made an attempt, apparently, I don't know

if that came on a Monday or what --

Q Okay.

A -- but they had received some type of notice return,

I wasn't aware of it, and then on Wednesday, I believe it

was Wednesday of last week, sir, that when I received

this, I immediately, the next opportunity -- 

MR. ROBERTS:  I just broke your table.

MR. HOGAN:  Well, that's never happened

before.  

MR. ROBERTS:  That's never happened?  
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MR. HOGAN:  I apologize for that.

MR. ROBERTS:  I will fix it after the

hearing.

MR. HOGAN:  A lot of times we like to

intimidate the witness.

MR. ROBERTS:  It's not a part of

intimidation.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Just lighten the mood a

little; right?

MR. ROBERTS:  Everybody awake?

MR. HOGAN:  Yeah.  That was -- that was

impressive.  Thank you for that.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q About the floors, Mr. Young, disrepair of public

facility.  What -- what can you tell us about that?

A Yes.  Mr. Nicklaus advised that if you had -- I

think it was a cove in the floor in the downstairs area.

That cove is a drain that the owner of the property has

put in there to safeguard in the event of a shampoo bowl

backing up, or the toilet backing up, that the -- the

cove is pitched like that because there is a drain there

for the water to be able to escape so that it doesn't

flood the -- the entire property.  That's why that is

there.  I've asked him to -- if we could smooth it out,

but that's what that cove is, it's pitched to -- to catch
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the water from the toilet and the overhead shampoo bowls

to -- to drain the -- the water out.

Q There is also -- I'm sorry, go ahead.

A And it -- yeah, it is -- it's also underneath the

stairwell.  It doesn't pose any kind of a threat to

the -- the -- the -- the citizens and/or the -- or any of

our clients, it's not any kind of a hazard for them.

It's in the corner, again, just to catch any -- in the

case the toilet ever overflows or something like that.  

The upstairs area that Mr. Nicklaus was speaking

about was -- it -- my salon and spa is a total of -- it

was 3,400 and -- it was 3,747 square feet.  The area that

Mr. Nicklaus is talking about is 9 inches by about a

quarter -- it's about the size of a pen, that -- about

this big where ever when I was dragging or moving a desk,

the wood parquet flooring was raised right there

slightly, and it took that layer of flooring off.  It's

not a trip hazard to any of my customers or any of our

clients.  It's not -- cosmetically it looks -- it --

the -- the flooring is a -- like a light maple color and

that spot right there is a -- is dark because it's -- the

first layer is gone.  It's not -- we're talking about

very -- level change, very small.  Cosmetically it

doesn't look that appealing but, again, I have 3,747

square feet and the area that we're talking about here
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is -- is about this size, a little bit larger than this.

Q Is it upstairs or downstairs you're talking about?

A This is upstairs in our lobby, sir.

Q So when people come in, they come in on the upstairs

level?

A Yes, sir.

Q And then downstairs -- just briefly describe how

your salon is set up.  What -- what do you have upstairs?

What do you have downstairs?

A Our -- our salon spa upstairs, when the -- when the

client walks down to the first level, sir, it's the --

the salon areas where, you know, our clients get their

hair and stuff done.  And in the back, they go down that

stairwell to the spa area, and -- and that's -- that's --

the stairwell is where Mr. Nicklaus talked about the

cove, which was actually a drain in the floor, and that's

how it's set up.

But, yes, the -- the spot that he's talking about

is, you know, roughly 9 inches long by about maybe --

maybe, at most, a half inch.

Q There was some also testimony about ceiling tiles,

that they had been broken?

A Yes.  In the dispensary area, where customers are --

are -- are not allowed to go, or do not go, there is -- I

believe it was eight ceiling tiles, and three of those
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have been moved to replace light bulbs, and I had not

moved the tiles back into their -- I mean just like these

tiles here, I had not moved them back into the same spot

because we had replaced a couple -- a few light bulbs and

that way -- that's what those tiles were for.  It's just

a matter of a ladder and moving the thing.  And, again,

it's not an area where -- where our clients and customers

are able to go.

Q How long have you been in this building?

A This -- I've been in there four years now.

Q The --

A I would also like to add that the -- that we were --

I was planning on, before this hearing today, I was

replacing that -- that floor so there wouldn't be any

issue on it, but our landlord is -- is moving our space

one over, so all the repairs and stuff that we would be

doing, in a few months, would be, you know, in a -- we

will be moving to next door, so all the -- I mean, if the

board wants me to, I'll replace the flooring, that won't

be a problem, but we are moving in a few months one --

our address is 8214, I think it's 8212 Cantrell Road.

Q Okay.  And the trashcan we've already talked about.

You understand that you should have covers for the top of

the trashcans and --

A I've also purchased two additional trashcans.  I
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wasn't sure I was reading with the notes here about

the -- about the sufficient number of trashcans, and so I

went out and I purchased two additional trashcans with

lids on them to be sure that I'm in accordance with

the -- with the rules here.

MR. HOGAN:  All right, sir.

I'm going to pass the witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Does

the board have any questions for Mr. Young?

Any questions for Mr. Young?

MS. FORD:  With regarding the waxing

supplies, I'm not clear, I don't know if it's

been discussed.  It shows where you've been

cited for waxing supplies to be placed in a

covered area.

THE WITNESS:  (Nodding head up and down.) 

Yes.  The -- from what I understand,

when -- when we train our employees, there is a

glass container underneath our wax cart that

has a lid on it, and maybe at the time that

Mr. Nicklaus came in, maybe that lid was -- was

not on there.  But there is one on that same

tray, maybe it was being used, like he had

said, we were very busy, maybe they didn't put

the lid on -- on -- on top of the container
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immediately when Mr. Nicklaus came in.  So, but

there is -- they are in a container, and the

lid, honestly, may not have been on there, I'm

not sure.  But there is one, at the time of the

inspection, we -- we do train our employees,

our staff to be sure and -- and -- and cover

all materials like that to obey by these, by

the rules the state has put in place.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Mr. Young, there is one other thing, I noted that

you did have four previous violations in 2012 and 2013

for unlicensed practitioners.  Were you manager during

that time?

A Yes, sir.

Q And I guess you've instituted something to ensure

that all practitioners are in fact licensed?

A Yeah.  I believe they were -- they were all

licensed -- they were all licensed, but their just --

their license had expired.  I don't make it a habit, I

don't have a -- I don't hire nonlicensed employees to

work in my business.  But they have been -- maybe they --

like myself, and they -- they may not have really kept up

with their licenses.  And I believe that Ms. Lindsey,

her -- her license had been renewed but she just hadn't

brought it into the salon yet.
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Q Was it Lindsey Sue Madden who supposedly license had

been expired on April 5th.  You're saying that she did

get it renewed but it had not been updated at the time?

A That's correct.  Yeah.  On her next day of work,

whenever she came back to work, she had the license.  And

at the time the inspection was on the 17th and this was

just -- her license had just -- was on the 5th, so just

a little over a week that she had not brought it in yet.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  That's all the

questions I have.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Any more

questions by the board?

Any questions for Mr. Josh King or Nancy

Young?

Okay.  Anything further from you,

Mr. Hogan?

MR. HOGAN:  I'm going to reserve the right

to call Ms. Kersey back for a recommendation,

but I have nothing at this time.

MR. YOUNG:  I would like to add one thing,

if I could?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  If you

could, speak up a little bit.

MR. YOUNG:  I'm sorry.  We do -- also

Mr. Nicklaus advised that -- that he had
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witnessed, you know, that he had -- that our

salon was very busy, and that he had seen some

shampoo bowls that weren't being utilized or

that a client had gotten up out of the shampoo

bowl.  But our staff -- we have employees that

their only job is to -- is to keep up with the

busier stylists, and before they put them in

our -- in our -- the shampoo bowls, they are

cleaned and sanitized and everything before the

client gets -- uses the -- the shampoo bowls.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  It's your turn, if

you -- if there is anything else you -- I just

called him as a witness in my case.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Okay.  Is

there anything else that -- from either Mr. or

Mrs. Young or Mr. King?  Anything further?

MR. KING:  No, ma'am.

MS. YOUNG:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  How about you,

Mr. King?

MR. YOUNG:  No, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Or Mr. Young?

I'm sorry.  Okay.

MR. YOUNG:  Just one minute.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



  75

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

right.

MR. HOGAN:  I'll just call Ms. Kersey.

WHEREUPON, 

KELLI KERSEY, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q State your name and your position with the

department.

A Kelli Kersey, section chief, Arkansas Department of

Health, cosmetology section.

Q You understand, Ms. Kersey, that this is the way a

hearing should work, that you would speak when you're

asked questions?

A Now?  Yes.  Thank you.

Q Okay.  Can you tell the members of the committee,

have you reviewed the inspection reports and looked at

the -- all of the evidence in this matter before today?

A I have.

Q Do you have a recommendation based upon your review

and knowledge of those laws that you would like to make

to the committee today?

A We do.  $500.
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Q $500?

A Page 5 is our recommendation.

Q Now, let's clear up, because I may be -- I think you

cleared it up earlier, but let me just make sure that I

understand.  Violations that are in the inspection

report, No. 8 is marked twice, No. 17 is marked twice.

Can you clarify your recommendation based upon those and

that report?

A It's actually No. 8 is marked twice because it's two

separate things, but it's one rule, so it can only be a

$50 charge, and 17 is the same thing.

Q Okay.  So there is only one violation of the rule

there?

A Correct.

Q And you factored that into your recommendation; is

that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And your recommendation to the committee is $500?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is there anything else that you would like to make

the committee aware of today before they go into

deliberations?

A The -- he didn't get a chance -- we didn't give him

a chance to pay today because he had violations four

inspections in a row, and this is the fifth inspection in
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a row that he had violations, and so we just brought him

before you guys so that you don't get -- you know, you

can deliberate over it.

Q Okay.  So elaborate, can you kind of outline the

previous violations?  I know I asked him about that;

but --

A Yeah.  Well, on February 2012 there was actually an

unlicensed practitioner, for $250.  I believe she was a

student, that she had not tested, if I remember

correctly.  The other three, the next three inspections

were practitioners that license had expired and were

still working, their license was still up.  So we

actually were going to bring him to hearing last time,

but he came in to pay the previous one for April 2013,

and the receptionist just let him pay both, so we didn't

bring him to a hearing because he had already paid it.

So this time when they went back to inspect him again and

he got more inspections, we just brought him before you

guys.

Q So you've been instructed by the committee, when

there has been a history of violations, specifically as

reflected in this particular case, to bring the licensee

before the committee --

A Correct.

Q -- for purposes of a hearing -- 
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A Correct.  After three, yes.

Q -- which is why he is here today?  

Now, has -- has he paid the previous violations that

were outstanding in the previous --

A He has.  He has paid all three.

Q And he has testified about -- and I know he's paid

to renew his salon license; is that correct?

A Correct.  It was Thursday when he came in to pay

that.

Q All right.  All right.  Is there anything further

that you need to tell the members of the committee?

A No.  I don't think so.  I think that's it.

MR. HOGAN:  I'll pass this witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Any

questions of Mr. Kersey, Mr. Young?

MR. YOUNG:  No, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Any

questions from the board for Ms. -- for any --

any -- either party?

MS. FORD:  I would like to question

Mr. Nicklaus.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Nicklaus?  Okay.

MS. FORD:  Is that okay?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Sure, okay.

WHEREUPON, 
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CHRIS NICKLAUS, 

having been recalled for examination, and having been 

previously duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was 

examined and testified, as follows: 

MS. FORD:  Okay.  Mr. Nicklaus, you heard

the testimony of Mr. Young in reference to the

floor and there being a drain placed there?

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

MS. FORD:  Could you please tell us about

what that particular area and what you have --

you saw?

THE WITNESS:  My concern with that area is

that it is right beside a public restroom.  My

only concern was that someone could step in it

and trip and fall.  And it is away from the

door but it's not that far away from the

restroom door.

MS. FORD:  Would you have to walk across

that area?  Is it out in the walkway?

THE WITNESS:  No.  It's to the left of the

door.  Just to the left.

MS. FORD:  And you wouldn't have to step

across it?

THE WITNESS:  No.

MS. FORD:  And is there an actual drain
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put there that's sealed around?

THE WITNESS:  I -- they say there is a

drain.

MS. FORD:  Or is there just a hole?

THE WITNESS:  It's -- the floor -- the

laminate is just over whatever is underneath it

and it's just completely caved in, so I

don't -- I don't know what's the --

MS. FORD:  You're saying caved in?

THE WITNESS:  The floor is caved in over

the drain, if that's what's under there, yes.

MS. FORD:  So it's not a drain that is --

MS. STEELE:  With a covered grill?

MS. FORD:  -- made?

THE WITNESS:  You can't see the drain

because the laminate floor is completely

covering it.

MS. FORD:  Uh-huh.

THE WITNESS:  So where the drain is

supposedly at, the laminated floor is --

MS. FORD:  Under the square?

THE WITNESS:  Do what?

MS. FORD:  Under the floor?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

MS. FORD:  And so the floor is caving down
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in where that empty space is?

THE WITNESS:  Correct.

MS. FORD:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Any other questions?

Oh, did you want to elaborate?

MR. YOUNG:  Yeah.  I just want to clarify

it.  Saying the word caved in, it's -- it's not

dilapidated or anything like that, it is sloped

to catch water is what it's for.

The laminate flooring that I put on top of

it because I wanted to present a nice

atmosphere for our clients.  We didn't want

this slope to be exposed or to look -- because

it doesn't look very nice to our clients, it

wouldn't, because it's just concrete

underneath -- underneath that.  So I asked the

landlord specifically about that particular

issue and he instructed me just to -- and

the -- the type of flooring that we used was a

very thin wood looking, basically a vinyl

sticker, and which we've laid -- we -- into the

sloped drain like that.  If I could paint a

picture for you, if I could, and that's what

that is.  And it's the restroom -- there is a

restroom down there, but we -- it's not -- it's
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not very wide, the door isn't very wide at all.

We use it mostly for our employees for them

having to have their own bathroom.  But the

public restroom -- I'm not saying that some of

our guests may not sneak in there and use the

bathroom because they can see it's a bathroom,

but we -- we instruct most of our guests to use

the upstairs bathroom.  And but that's what

it -- he's saying caved in as if, it may paint

a picture to some of the board, they hear that

it is cracking and in -- and in poor condition,

and that's not the case, it's just sloped to

catch -- I mean, the -- the owner of the

property said he wanted it -- needed it there

just to catch -- he didn't want any of the

units, because there is actually another unit

below us, being damaged or anything because of

a backed up toilet or something.

THE WITNESS:  I just want to say, I never

said that it was cracked or dilapidated, I just

said that the floor was caved in.

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.  I -- and I'm -- I'm just

afraid that the board may see -- hearing the

word caved in, they may think that a foot may

fall through there or the whole place is going
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to collapse or something.  But it's just --

it's just sloped, it's pitched to catch any

water.

WHEREUPON, 

ELLIOTT YOUNG, 

having been recalled for examination, and having been 

first duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Mr. Young, as I understand your disagreement maybe

about the characterization, but let me ask you, this has

been four now in a row -- five, five inspections?  That's

kind of out of the ordinary for the committee.  I would

suspect that they will want to know, what are you doing,

how are you changing the way you do business.  Because

they have asked us to bring you in here specifically

because of a history of patterns of violations, which

they take very seriously.  I -- I think it would be good

for you to explain how you're going to ensure in the

future that this doesn't happen again.

A Yes, sir.  I would be happy to.

The -- the other lady that was just up here says

she's maybe lucky to get an inspection once every two

years, but seems like we've been inspected about every --
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at least here lately, two or three times a year, and --

and in my opinion that's -- I'm not saying that the

license is -- the license is clearly my fault and I'll --

I'll fall on my sword on that one, and it's -- it's --

it's my fault and I take full responsibility for it.  But

these violations here, in my opinion, again, on the

flooring issues, the ceiling is -- is very, very minor,

is running through my business through a very fine tooth

comb.  We're talking about a space in the lobby here

that's a little bit larger than my ink pen here on a

3,747-foot salon and spa, and if this is all that's

damaged, then the -- the flooring, I think I'm doing a

pretty good job.  Every time the inspectors come, came in

my business, I try to make steps necessary to -- to -- to

make any type of corrections, so much so that I --

that -- that I did let my license expire, and I apologize

to the board for that, and as soon as it was brought to

my attention, I did immediately the next day, whenever

Ms. Kersey, on Thursday, paid the -- to get the license

reinstated.

It's not our -- it's not my -- my practice or for

the salon here to -- to -- to be in violation of any of

these rules.  As soon as they are brought to my

attention, I'll hold a staff meeting in instructing the

staff.  You know, but like, you know, I do have a large
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staff, a large number of employees that we manage and

train and -- and, you know, and -- and ensure that the

rules from the state are -- are -- are obeyed by, you

know.  So, you know, but the -- these -- you know, most

of these charges are, in my opinion, are very minor

infractions.  The -- the flooring in particular, the

ceiling tile that was moved to replace a light bulb, is

just -- that -- that not even a client is -- can even go

to, is -- you know, I mean again, three times in one

year.  And I know we've had issues in the past as far as

some of our employees letting their licenses -- their

licenses lapse.  I've instructed my manager here to -- to

be sure that, you know, on the first of every month to --

to look at the -- the licenses.  And that's why

Ms. Lindsey, her license that month in April was -- had

been renewed.

I'm just telling the court -- the board here that we

are trying to obey by all the rules and the laws in the

state and we've made a lot of improvements on it and --

and again, that's just -- you know --

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q You would expect the department to investigate all

complaints they receive.  Correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And some of these investigations were warranted by
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the basis of receiving a complaint on your facility, for

either having unlicensed --

A Yeah.  Complaints from maybe my competitors.

Q Right.

A Yeah.  So that would --

Q Well, you wouldn't want us to -- if you had

complained about one of your competitors, for us to

ignore that complaint, would you?

A Well -- well, I mean, I -- I don't come to the -- to

the board then and complain about other salons that are,

you know, smoking narcotics in their facilities or

anything like that, which I know the competitor that I'm

talking about, and that's also rumored what he has been

doing in his establishment, where customers are

complaining about the smell of marijuana coming from

his -- from his apartment or house.

Q I think your -- your -- the point was that the

department and the committee has to follow through on

complaints that they receive.

A Yes.  We had --

Q And they have to determine if there's some merit

to --

A Yes, sir.

Q -- the complaints, and so they have to investigate

them, which they have, by coming to your salon?
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A Yes.  Yes, sir.

Q And they found violations?

A Yes, sir.  That we -- there was a -- a stylist that

we had working at our salon that was there.  We have

people that -- that when they first come out of beauty

school, they are not -- you know, I know that they have a

license to do hair, whether or not they can do it to our

standards is a totally different story.  But when we had

one stylist, that when she was working there, it was

brought to our attention later that we were the victim of

a forgery, that the license that she had was actually a

Photoshopped license.  I was not aware of this.  I didn't

know that kind of stuff took place.  I didn't know who in

the world, I mean this woman, I know, went to school,

I -- I know that she did, but I'm not sure if that's one

of the violations that they are -- that they are speaking

about.  But, you know, this girl was -- helped out at the

front desk, she had done other things in the salon, you

know, but I don't think that should be held against me.

I was the victim.  I was a victim in it as well as some

of the -- maybe some of the -- but I was not aware

that -- that her license was -- was Photoshopped.

Q How often are you at the salon?  Is this --

A How often am I --

Q Yeah.
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A A few days a week.

Q Are you there during the day?  I'm sorry?

A A few days a week.  I have another job as well.

Q Do you manage or own another salon?

A No.

Q So you have another full-time job that you do?

A Yes, sir, I do.

Q And is Mr. King there every time that the

business -- the business is open, or does he work with --

A He is there 40 hours a week, Tuesday through Friday,

from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Q Okay.  And is it open on Saturdays and Sundays as

well?

A Saturdays.

Q But not Sunday?

A We have a few clients that may want -- request by

appointment only on Sundays.

Q Does your wife also go to the salon and work, or

does she manage the salon and does she have any

responsibilities towards the salon?  How often is she

there, I guess, let me ask?

A She's there a lot -- a lot more than Josh is.  I

would say she works --

MS. YOUNG:  I'm there about maybe 60

hours, maybe more.  I do hair behind the chair,
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and I try to maintain everything as much as I

can upstairs as well as dealing with three or

four clients at the same time.  I have about

two assistants at all times, sometimes three,

the salon carries four assistants at the salon

to make sure that we're always keeping the

shampoo bowls clean, sweeping, everything is

always kept as much as we can to state board

rules.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Well, that's all -- all

I have.  If there is anything else, I do know

the committee considers a pattern like this to

be a very serious concern.

MR. YOUNG:  I could see how it could be.

MR. HOGAN:  And they would want to be sure

that you have a handle on making certain,

whether it's somebody that doesn't care for

you, a competitor or whatever, we still have to

follow up on complaints.

MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

MR. HOGAN:  And they shouldn't be able to

find unlicensed people out there or an

unlicensed salon every time they -- they go.

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.  I understand, sir.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.
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MS. SULLIVAN:  I have a question for

Mr. Nicklaus.

The area and the reception or lobby area

that was messed up, is that -- was that in any

type of danger or what was --

MR. NICKLAUS:  I believe so.  The section

that he's referring to is in between the

reception area and the wall into the entrance

way into the salon.  A woman's heel could

easily get stuck in it, she could trip.  That's

just the way I looked at it at that point.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Is that the area

that he was referring to that was the size of

his pen, ink pen?  Is that -- is that the same

area that you're talking about?

MR. NICKLAUS:  It's about the size or

maybe a little bigger.  I can't exactly recall.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  But it's the same area that's

on the -- the entry level on the second floor

we're talking about?

MR. NICKLAUS:  Yes.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Mr. Ken, did you

have something?
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MR. ROBERTS:  I think the main issue with

the floor is the drain hole on the bottom.

That is a definite trip hazard.  I witnessed it

myself.

MR. HOGAN:  Well, Mr. Young -- 

MR. ROBERTS:  That's more of a concern

than the scratch on the floor.

MR. HOGAN:  -- had something.  Is there

something you wanted to show the members of the

committee?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.  This is -- this is what

I was speaking about in the lobby area.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Can

you --

MR. HOGAN:  Do you want to pass that

around to the committee?  We have -- we have no

objection to introducing that.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  This is the

lobby -- this is the lobby area?  What does it

show?

MR. YOUNG:  This is the lobby area

Mr. Nicklaus is speaking about.  And here is --

my -- my salon and spa is 3,700 plus.

MR. HOGAN:  When was this picture taken?

MR. YOUNG:  Last night.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And that's from

standing on top of the --

MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay, you've

got -- you've got a tape measure beside the

area, and it measures to be approximately

9 inches?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.  Again, this

happened whenever we were moving our front desk

over a little bit.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Can you come over here?

I'm sorry.  I can't see.

Do you have a picture of the drain as

well?

MR. YOUNG:  No.  I'm sorry, I don't.

MS. ANDERSON:  Is this the same thing is

on -- in the basement area as well?

MR. YOUNG:  This floor in here, it looks

similar like this, but it's not --

MS. ANDERSON:  Uh-huh.

MR. YOUNG:  -- it's not -- this is more of

a hard, like thicker.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Like they click together?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.  The one downstairs,

since it was on a concrete slab, we just used,

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



  93

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

basically, just a sticker.  You just pull the

backing off, lay it down, and it's in the drain

and -- is that all?

MS. SULLIVAN:  Will you do this?  I'm

sorry.  I can't see that far.

MR. HOGAN:  You said this happened when

you moved something?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

MR. HOGAN:  When you moved in or what?

MR. YOUNG:  No.  We are always making --

trying to make improvements to our space, sir,

and when I purchased the salon and spa, that

the -- the -- there was a desk in there that I

didn't like that our -- our clients were

greeted with an employee that was sitting down.

To me, that's --

MR. HOGAN:  How long ago was it that you

made this?

MR. YOUNG:  Huh?

MR. HOGAN:  How long ago was it that you

moved this desk?

MR. YOUNG:  It would be about a year, year

and a half, maybe.  And -- and I know that it

doesn't look very good but it's not a --

certainly no woman's heel could get stuck in
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there, I don't believe.

MR. ROBERTS:  Could I see that, please?

MS. ANDERSON:  I do have -- excuse me.  I

do have a question about the downstairs drain.

Why did you cover it with your floor covering?

Why did you not leave that drain open so people

saw that it was a drain?

MR. YOUNG:  Well, the -- I hired a couple

of guys that came in there that laid the floor

for me, and the -- there may be the -- the

actual, the part that has the holes and stuff

in it --

MS. ANDERSON:  Right.

MR. YOUNG:  -- may be underneath that --

that -- that sticker that's basically on top

of -- and it may be there.  But just for --

again, I didn't want to argue, I didn't want to

argue with the landlord about it, but I didn't

think it looked very good toward --

MS. ANDERSON:  Just for information, that

would have to have been approved by the city

prior to you opening that business.  Did the

city approve that drain?  Did they do anything

about that drain?  Did they know that drain was

there?
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MR. YOUNG:  Yes.  Yes, ma'am.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  So they -- they

previously approved it, and the other drain

that's over by the stairs covered like that?

MR. YOUNG:  There is only one drain that I

think we're speaking about.

MS. ANDERSON:  I thought there were two

drains?  There was one by the stairs?

MS. STEELE:  One in the same.

MS. ANDERSON:  I'm sorry.  They're one in

the same drain?  Okay.

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  It's my

understanding there was only one.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Thank you.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And you said

that you purchased this salon or do you --

you're renting it?

MR. YOUNG:  Well, I don't -- I rent the

space.  I bought the name 2121 and the

equipment, and it was a pre-existing running

business, about four years ago.  And the -- the

landlord, the owner of the actual property who

I give a check to, which I hate, every -- the

1st of every month, he's the one that I've

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



  96

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

spoken to him about the improvements that I did

as a tenant to his space, the things that we

wanted to do to his space, and I asked him

about the drain, you know.  And I

specifically -- and -- and he said that he

needed to keep it because he wanted to be sure

that he didn't flood out, in case a toilet

backed up, is what he had told to me.  And it's

in the corner, I wish to god I had brought

pictures but I was tired and wanted to go to

bed, but the -- it's in the corner.  It is next

to a bathroom, the doorway is here, here, the

drain is over here underneath the stairwell

like he said, it's -- it's not any kind of a

trip hazard, and we direct all of our clients

for the bathroom to go upstairs --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And your -- your

landlord wouldn't allow you to get rid of it

either -- I mean, it's his property, is what

you're saying?

MR. YOUNG:  Correct.

MR. NICKLAUS:  If I recall, the drain is

in between a restroom door and a storage door;

correct?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.
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MR. NICKLAUS:  Okay.

MS. SULLIVAN:  I have a question.  You --

okay, I've got to make sure I have this in my

head right.  You have put -- there is a drain

there to catch any backups, of course.  But

then you've gone in and put a sticker, laminate

tile over the drain?

MR. YOUNG:  (Nodding head up and down.)

MS. SULLIVAN:  So there is no drain catch

there, there is just a dip in the floor?

MR. YOUNG:  There is a dip in the floor

and --

MS. SULLIVAN:  But it's not going to do

any good to catch any backup because there is a

sticker over it; is that correct?  I mean am I

getting this in my head right?

MR. YOUNG:  You are.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.

MR. YOUNG:  And it's pretty much -- I mean

a -- I'm fighting with the -- or I'm disputing

with the landlord because I want to do

what's -- cosmetically looks good to -- for our

guests and he's wanting to, you know -- and

believe me, if the water would have backed up,

it would get back up -- it would still go in
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that drain and still go out, exit into the

sewer system, but, you know, even though it is

there, it would -- it would still drain, so --

but don't tell my landlord.

MS. FORD:  I -- I do have a question.  My

question is going to be, I think, for

Ms. Kersey or either Ken.  Do we have a copy of

the original inspection, pre-inspection for

opening the salon?

MS. KERSEY:  We don't do pre-inspections.

They get a letter of authorization they can

open, and then we go in, so --

MS. ANDERSON:  Just as a fact -- just as a

fact or --

MS. KERSEY:  Sorry?

MS. ANDERSON:  Oh, go ahead.

MR. ROBERTS:  I have been to the -- that

salon on several occasions.  I have never

noticed that hole in the floor until this last

time, so maybe it has caved in -- caved in more

maybe, because I've -- I've been on almost

every inspection in that salon, and that hole

this time caught my eye immediately when I

walked downstairs.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Has it been
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there the whole time?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.  I'm -- he may

have just noticed it, but that floor, I mean

it's on several inches of concrete, it's not --

it -- I mean --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  When are you

moving?  Did you say --

MR. YOUNG:  It should be -- well, I was

told I would be in the -- I was told, ma'am,

that I would be in that space by the 1st of

January.  I'm not -- I'm not lying.  It's

framed up.  I'm at the will of the -- of the

owner of the property.  I would like to be able

to tell you it would be in a month, but I don't

want to tell you something that's not

necessarily true, but I -- he's making some

progress on it, and I -- not as fast as I would

like, but he is making some progress.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Any

other questions?

MS. ANDERSON:  I just want to make a

comment to the -- to the group.  Every building

in the state has to be inspected before it can

open.  If there was a drain there, it was for

the purpose of, because it's a story building.
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How many stories are there to the

building?

MR. YOUNG:  On that side where I'm at,

it's three.

MS. ANDERSON:  Three stories.  So is there

another story below you?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  And it's an occupied space?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  There must be a drain

there.  The drain has regulations.  I live with

a master plumber who is a state inspector, so

I'm saying this for knowledge base, because I

argue over where the drain goes in my salon

every time and I lose, because this drain has

to be in a location.  Now, I'm not sure they

would allow you to cover that drain, but for

esthetic purposes, because that's not what the

drain is there for.

MR. YOUNG:  Sure.

MS. ANDERSON:  But as far as it sinking

in, it probably has over time, what they are

saying it sunk in, you know, time because the

moisture inside that building or inside that

drain.
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And the other thing about that drain, if

you've never had a drain like that, if it gets

dry it smells really bad, so you may have some

odor coming from that drain, and that could be

a public hazard.  So just a point of interest.

MS. FORD:  Well, if I may ask Mr. Young a

question, how long have you had it covered?

That's what I was wondering.

MR. YOUNG:  About a year and a half.

MS. FORD:  About a year and a half now

you've had it covered?

MR. YOUNG:  Yeah.

MS. FORD:  So otherwise it was wide open,

it was visibly seen by people?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

MS. FORD:  What it was designed?  And

maybe -- okay.

MR. YOUNG:  Can I -- can I please, I mean

I know we keep focusing on this -- this drain

here, but as firm as the floor we're standing

on right now is how firm this -- I mean it's

not going anywhere, it's just pitched.  It's

solid concrete, it's not cracking, there is

no -- no issues to the floor whatsoever, other

than maybe not knowing exactly what it is and
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why it's there.  But it's not any kind of -- I

mean it's -- there is no issues with the floor

other than it just being sloped for a drain is

all.

MS. FORD:  And I have one more question in

relation to your dispensary and the ceiling

insulation being exposed, I guess, wires or

whatever is running in that space above your --

and you testified that no clients go in, but

you still have a responsibility to your

stylists.

MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. FORD:  So it does pose a risk.

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

MS. SULLIVAN:  I have a question.  Okay.

Two, actually.  Okay.  I'm with her, the

ceiling tile thing, if you had just kind of a

little FYI, I guess more than anything, if you

change the bulbs, then just move the tile back

whenever you get done.

MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. SULLIVAN:  That -- that would solve

that problem.

And then the inspection was done 4/17.

MR. YOUNG:  (Nodding head up and down.)
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MS. SULLIVAN:  But you went last week, is

that right, to pay the fine from the previous

fines and to update your license?  Is that what

I understood, or am I wrong on that?  I want to

make sure I'm right.

MR. YOUNG:  No, ma'am.  I -- I -- again,

at the time of the inspection on April 17th,

I still believe had -- on April 17th, I still

believed that I had renewed my license, the

establishment salon license, I believed that I

had.  And up until -- and on Tuesday of last

week, I still believed that I had paid my salon

license.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Did you call like after the

inspection to see at that time or did you just

believe it in your head?  I mean --

THE WITNESS:  No, I was just going by

my -- I mean, I made a mistake.  I'm not saying

that it was anyone's fault other than my own.

I believe that it was probably either in my --

in my desk or something like that, but when I

got the notice that -- that we were going to --

to this CTAC board here, I'm like, well,

apparently I was wrong, and I was, and the next

day I went and paid it.
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MS. SULLIVAN:  And at that time you had

also paid the previous fines from the

expired --

MR. YOUNG:  No.

MS. SULLIVAN:  No?

MR. YOUNG:  I have the receipt for --

MS. ANDERSON:  They were paid previously.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.  Yeah.  I -- was

checking, and that's why I was asking, because

I wanted to make sure I had that right in my

head because I didn't want to --

MR. YOUNG:  It was -- it was $150, I'm not

sure what --

MS. SULLIVAN:  You don't have a date on

it, but --

MR. YOUNG:  Yeah, it's on the -- the date

is on the 15th of the --

MS. SULLIVAN:  Of this year?

MR. YOUNG:  Of this -- of this month.

MS. ANDERSON:  He didn't receive it until

the 1st.

MR. HOGAN:  On any of these old ones

either?

MS. ANDERSON:  No, this current one, the

1st.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 105

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  So the old --

the old fines were paid when?

MR. HOGAN:  Under --

MS. KERSEY:  I don't know.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Go ahead.

MS. KERSEY:  Okay.  Now, the 8/15/2013 was

paid when he went in to pay for the 4/24/2013,

is what I was talking about, that's why we

didn't bring him to the hearing for the 8/15 --

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.

MS. KERSEY:  -- because that would have

been actually the fourth violation in a row. 

MS. SULLIVAN:  Four in a row.

MS. KERSEY:  So when he came in to pay the

4/24, the receptionist gave him both of those

and he paid for both of those.

MS. SULLIVAN:  In August -- 

MS. KERSEY:  Yeah, uh-huh, yeah.

MS. SULLIVAN:  -- he paid for April and

August at the same time?

MS. KERSEY:  Right.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.

MS. KERSEY:  Right.

MS. SULLIVAN:  But that was paid then,
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that has nothing -- they were -- okay.  I'm

good now.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  That's not an

issue on this one right now.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.  I'm totally clear.

MS. KERSEY:  Yeah.  All right.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Thank you.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Any further

questions?

MS. FORD:  Was the fine paid when he came

in to renew the salon license or did he just

renew?

MS. KERSEY:  (Nodding head up and down.)

MS. FORD:  Because I noticed that on the

proposed payment for the fines --

MS. KERSEY:  Uh-huh.

MS. ANDERSON:  This one is the --

MS. FORD:  Okay.  It says No. 5 at the

top, it says salon license current 250.  Is

that -- are you suggesting that we remove that

fine or has it been paid or hasn't been paid?

MS. KERSEY:  (Shaking head from side to

side.)  

Has not -- none of these have been paid.

MR. HOGAN:  The fine hasn't been paid.  He
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renewed his license.

MS. KERSEY:  These fines haven't been

paid.

MS. FORD:  Well, the license was renewed

but the fine was not paid?

MS. KERSEY:  Right.

MR. HOGAN:  Right.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Any

further questions?

Anything further from you, Mr. Hogan?

MR. HOGAN:  We have nothing further.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Oh, I do have one thing.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.

MS. SULLIVAN:  I'm sorry.  The one -- the

practitioner that was -- her license was

expired, was not working at the time; right?

MR. YOUNG:  (Nodding head up and down.)

MS. SULLIVAN:  She's not -- she was not

there?

MR. YOUNG:  Correct.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  I'll ask again,

any other questions?

MR. HOGAN:  And, again, this is -- the

committee is about to go into deliberations,

you all were here earlier, there is no
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questions or no opportunity, so after they

start discussing this, so if there is anything

at all that you need to make the record to

reflect, you need to do that now or forever --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

We'll go into deliberations at this time.

MR. HOGAN:  I -- I think they are still

discussing, hold on just a second.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Oh, they are

still discussing?

MR. HOGAN:  Ms. Young?

MS. YOUNG:  I want to try to bring up the

whole shampoo bowl clean after and before each

use.  I don't feel that we should be fined for

that.  If it's something that we -- say the

shampoo bowl was -- had some shampoo in it or

some conditioner left over from the client

before that just got out of the chair, but

before an assistant takes back the next guest,

they are not laid in a dirty bowl, they are --

it is cleaned and prepped and a towel is even

laid out for them to lay their neck back in a

clean bowl, so therefore I -- I see no reason

for us to be fined on that because I don't feel

like that's a --
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MR. YOUNG:  Because they are cleaned

before the use, is what she's getting at.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.

MS. SULLIVAN:  But it does need to be

cleaned after as well, because somebody could

get set into that chair without it being

cleaned properly and there is no way for the

inspector to know if it is for sure or not.

MR. KING:  I thought that mean either or,

before or slash after, does that mean both?

MS. ANDERSON:  It actually states under

the law, if you want to go to the law in the

rules, 17B, shampoo bowls, shampoo trays and

bowls must be cleaned with soap and water or

other disinfectants after each use, kept in

good repair and in sanitary condition at all

times.  So you should have cleaned it, you

should make sure to clean when you -- when you

get up from it, you should clean it -- make

sure to clean before you set someone in the

chair, the chair as well as the bowl.

MR. YOUNG:  We'll -- we'll make the

necessary changes.

MS. ANDERSON:  These are vital.  These are

vital for your salon.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  I'm

almost afraid to ask anybody else, any more

questions?

MR. HOGAN:  Are we ready to -- everybody

okay?

MS. ANDERSON:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  We'll go into

deliberations at this time.  No further

comments from the board, and we'll do that off

the record.

(WHEREUPON, the Committee retired to 

deliberate, off the record, from 11:02 a.m. to 

11:03 a.m., and returned with the following 

comment:) 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  We're back on

the record.  

Yes.  In the cosmetology matter of 2121

Color Salon, and --

MS. STEELE:  And that I, Cynthia Steele,

should recuse myself from voting or

deliberations because I have been a client in

the salon.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

So --

MR. HOGAN:  Thank you.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- Ms. Cynthia

is recusing from any deliberations or from any

decision making in this matter, she will not

take part in that at all.

Okay.  We're off the record.

(WHEREUPON, the Committee retired to 

deliberate, off the record, from 11:03 a.m. to 

11:14 a.m., and returned with the following 

decision:) 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  We're

back on the record, In The Matter of 2121 Color

Salon, the board has deliberated, and I'll turn

it over to the chairman to entertain a motion.

MS. ANDERSON:  At this time I would like

to hear a motion from the committee.

MS. FORD:  I would like to make a motion

that we follow the recommendation for the $500

fine for the items listed on the inspection

sheet, and to also impose a 30 to 60 day

reinspection, and if during this time period

any licensing issues are found to be in

violation, it will warrant a possible

suspension of the license for the salon

establishment.

MS. JACKSON:  I second that.
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MS. ANDERSON:  And we have a second.  All

those in favor?  Adrian?

MR. TABB:  Aye.

MS. PECK:  Aye.

MS. JACKSON:  Aye.

MS. FORD:  Aye.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Aye.

MS. ANDERSON:  Then the committee votes

unanimously.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  The

board's decision today will be put in written

format and you will receive a copy of it and

then your right to appeal will be explained in

the board's decision.  And that concludes this

matter before the board.  And thank you for

being here. 

(WHEREUPON, at 11:15 a.m., the 

above-entitled proceedings were concluded.) 

---o--- 
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ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING 

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PETITIONER 

v. 

ADRIENNE'S ULTIMATE U II SALON RESPONDENT 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  And

the next matter before the board is --

MR. HOGAN:  Do we have any other attendees

today?  Is anybody --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Is there

somebody from Adrienne's or Solar Nails?

MR. YOUNG:  Here.  

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Which one?

MR. YOUNG:  Adrienne's.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  If you

will, have a seat right there.  And we are on

the record before the Arkansas Cosmetology

Board in the matter of Adrienne's Ultimate

Salon.  The representing Adrienne's is -- can I

get your name?

MR. YOUNG:  Adrienne Mackey Tolbert.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Adrienne,

Mackey -- last name?

MR. YOUNG:  Tolbert.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  T-o-l-b-e-r-t?

MR. YOUNG:  Yes.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

And --

MR. YOUNG:  Jeanette Porter.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Jeanette Porter.

Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  The other one is from Solar.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Oh, okay.  I'm

sorry.  I'm sorry.  Okay.  So Adrienne and

Jeanette.  All right.  And then, Mr. Hogan is

representing the board.  And, Mr. Hogan, who

are you going to have testifying today?

MR. HOGAN:  We're going to have Roselyn

Smith and Kelli Kersey.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Okay.

Ms. Kersey and Ms. Smith and Ms. Mackey Tolbert

and Ms. Porter, if you will raise your right

hand, I'll swear you in.

(WHEREUPON, the witnesses were sworn by

the Hearing Officer.)

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Thank you so much.  

And with regard to documents --

MR. HOGAN:  Madam Hearing Officer, we have

a nine page document that includes the Order

and Notice for today's hearing and an
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inspection report performed by Ms. Smith dated

April 9.  Have y'all had an opportunity to look

through that?

MS. TOLBERT:  Yes.  Yes, sir.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Do you have any

objections to this being considered by the

board today, this document that he just -- that

Mr. Hogan just described?

MS. TOLBERT:  No, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Thank you.  Then, we'll go ahead and enter that

into the record.

(WHEREUPON, Board's Exhibit No. 1 was 

marked for identification.) 

MR. HOGAN:  And we would ask that the

committee be able to take notice of their rules

and regulations as well as the statute

governing the practice of cosmetology in this

state.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  The

board will take judicial notice of it's rules

and regulations and the statutes governing the

cosmetology industry, and they will become part

of the record.  

All right.  And with that, I'll let you
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call your first witness.

MR. HOGAN:  We'll call Ms. Smith.

WHEREUPON, 

ROSELYN SMITH, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Roselyn, state your name and your position with the

Department of Health, please.

A Roselyn Smith, Arkansas Department of Health,

inspector of the cosmetology section.

Q Roselyn, did you have an occasion to inspect

Adrienne's Ultimate -- is that --

MS. TOLBERT:  U.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q -- U Salon?  Did you -- 

A Yes.

Q When did you do that inspection?

A It was 4/9/14.

Q On April 9th?

A Yes.

Q Did you go -- this is located over on 37th Street in

North Little Rock; is that correct?

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 117

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

A Yes.

Q What did you find when you went into the

establishment?

A First of all, when I came, the door was locked,

there was a young lady.  Neither one of these people was

there.  She let me in, she had to unlock the door.  I

introduced myself, and I told her that I was there to do

an inspection and she said go ahead.  She went back to

her client.  I walked around.  I saw a bucket underneath

the shampoo bowl, and I asked the lady, the young lady

that was working, and she -- I asked her what the bucket

was for, and she said, oh, it doesn't work.  So I marked

it as plumbing.  And I also saw some towels across from

that bowl on a shelf that wasn't in a closed cabinet, and

I marked that under 14.

Q Okay.  Roselyn, did --

A No, under 13.

Q I'm sorry.  What was that?

A Under 13.

Q Okay.  So you found two particular violations that

day?  What, do you remember, did you write the lady's

name that you talked to down that was --

A Her -- she was the lady that signed it, I think her

name was Dominique Simpson.

Q Okay.  So she signed the inspection report?
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A Yes.

Q And you checked for her license, she has a current

license, I believe --

A Yes.

Q -- through August of 2016.

Roselyn -- Roselyn, the inspection report has a date

up by the salon license number as 4/17/14; is that

correct?

A Yes.

Q And that would be the date that the salon license

would have expired; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q You haven't cited this business for an expiration of

the salon, to your knowledge --

A No.

Q -- there is no violation of the expiration of the

license?

A No.

Q Ms. Mackey, who is here today, is -- her license

also would have expired on April of this year,

April 17th.  To your knowledge, is -- has her license

been renewed?

A I don't -- 

Q So you haven't cited her for that; correct?

A No, I didn't.
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Q And you said Ms. Simpson was tending to a client.

Was she washing their hair or cutting hair or whatever,

do you remember?

A She was braiding a client.

Q She was what?

A Braiding a client.

Q Oh, braiding a client.  Okay.

And you said the -- was the business closed or is

this an -- maybe an area where you kind of keep the door

locked until you got somebody you know is coming in, is

that what we're talking about?

A I'm not sure.  I just -- the door was locked so she

had to --

Q She let you in?

A Let me in.  (Nodding head up and down.)

Q But it was during the middle of the day, I take it?

A It was before lunch.

Q Before lunch?  And I haven't looked to see what day

April 9 is, but I'm assuming this was during the week?

A Yes.

Q So back to the plumbing, what kind of -- we had

pictures earlier of a sink that had a trashcan underneath

it, but it has -- I think -- I think that's called a --

is it a P-trap or --

MS. ANDERSON:  Yes.
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BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q That trap that goes underneath the sink, is that the

kind of thing you observed there was a trash -- there was

a can underneath the -- the sink and -- and Ms. Simpson

told you that the sink wasn't -- wasn't working?

A It was a bucket, not a trashcan.

Q Okay.

A But she -- I just asked her what was it for and she

said, we don't use it, it doesn't work.

Q Talking about the sink or --

A So I assumed -- I assumed she was talking about the

sink.  And the -- the bucket, I don't know, maybe it

was -- I -- I don't know what the bucket was for.  She

just said it wasn't working.

Q Was there any water inside --

We'll let you talk in just a second.

Well, did you see any water inside the bucket or

anything?

A I don't remember.

Q Okay.

A I don't remember.

Q What did -- did you talk to Ms. Simpson about the

bucket, why it was -- other than saying that it wasn't

working, did she say that it was collecting water that

dripped out of the -- the P-trap or anything like that?
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Did y'all talk about that?

A She just said it didn't work.

Q Okay.

A That it wasn't working.

Q All right.  Is there anything further you want to

make the committee aware of?

A No.  Not -- no, sir.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  I'll pass this witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Ms. Adrienne, do you have any questions

specifically for Ms. Smith?

MS. TOLBERT:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Not at this

time?  Okay.

MS. TOLBERT:  Not at this time.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Does the board

have any more questions for Ms. Smith?

Okay.  Your -- okay.  Your next witness?

MR. HOGAN:  I'll go ahead and call

Ms. Porter, because I think she wants to say

something.  So I'll call her as a witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Oh, Ms. Porter,

okay.  I thought it was Ms. Thomas.

WHEREUPON, 

JEANETTE PORTER, 
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having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Ms. Porter, can you state your name.

A Jeanette Porter.

Q Ms. Porter, do you work at this Adrienne's Ultimate

Beauty Salon.

A I'm her shop manger, make sure everything --

Q So you manage the shop for her?

A Uh-huh.  Because she has two shops, and I just make

sure everything be going smooth for her.  That sink does

work, the bucket was just there.  It is not a bucket to

catch water, there is no way that we could run a salon

with one bowl that's working and dripping like that.

It's no water in that bucket.  She did not let

Ms. Simpson run water in the sink to see if it was

leaking.  So if you go over there now, the bucket is dry,

it just sits there, it's -- it's -- it's not leaking.

It's not leaking --

Q What --

A -- and Ms. Porter did not tell her that.

Q Why would Ms. Simpson have said that it's not

working?
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A I -- she didn't say that.  She just said --

MS. TOLBERT:  It's her daughter.  Can I

speak?  Can I speak?  It's my salon, can I

speak?

MR. HOGAN:  Well, hold on just a second.

Let's kind of keep -- we'll let you talk next.

THE WITNESS:  She was saying the bucket,

not the sink because I use that sink.  That

sink works.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Is that the only sink that you had?

A No, there's two sinks.

Q You've got two sinks?

A Uh-huh.

Q And this sink is utilized for washing people's hair

and so forth?

A Uh-huh.  Shampooing hair.

Q Shampooing hair?

A Uh-huh.

Q And it's your testimony that that bucket was

underneath the sink but the sink was working just fine?

A Uh-huh.  It's just there, it's a mop bucket that we

use to mop the floor and stuff with.  It's just there.

Q Okay.  So you have a bucket that has water in it

sometimes that's utilized to mop?
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A Huh-uh.  It never has water in it, it's just a empty

bucket.

Q And you keep it --

A Only time water is in it is if we mop the floor.

Q And you keep it underneath the sink?

A Yeah.  It's just -- well, it's just over there,

yeah.

Q Okay.  What kind of flooring do you have in there?

Is it a concrete floor or is it some kind of --

A Little tile.

Q Tile?

A Uh-huh.  It's three types of floors in there.

Q Okay.  All right.  Now, this clean towels out, open,

do you not have a cabinet to store your towels in for the

customers?

A (Nodding head up and down.)

Q Do you --

MS. TOLBERT:  Are you asking me?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  No.  He's going

to get to you.

MR. HOGAN:  Well, I was asking Ms. Porter

I'll get to you.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  He will get to

you in a minute.

THE WITNESS:  Oh, yes.  It's a cabinet
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with clean towels.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q But this says that there was -- there were towels

that were open that were not stored.  Do you leave towels

out?

A No.  The cabinets were full, it's just in the bundle

of towels that was just laying there probably then.

Q So when the towels -- when the cabinet is full, then

you leave the other towels outside the cabinet?

A Yes.  Uh-huh.

Q Okay.  And you understand you're not supposed to

leave towels out that are open to hair and other things

that can collect on the towels in the shop?

A Yes.

Q You understand that, Ms. Porter?

A Uh-huh.  Yes, sir.

Q Are you -- are you a licensed cosmetologist?

A Barber.

Q A licensed barber?

A Uh-huh.

Q Do you work any other places other than for Ms. --

A No.  I just make sure that her shop is running.

Q Okay.  Is there anything further you want to make

the committee aware of?

A No more than that that sink does work.  The towels
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that was laying out there, we don't leave them out there

all the time, it was just that they was just there at

that time because the cupboards were full.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  All right.  That's all

I have.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Does the board

have any more questions for Ms. Porter?

MS. JACKSON:  What did you say you use

that sink for?

THE WITNESS:  To shampoo hair.

MS. JACKSON:  Okay.  So you do do hair

there?

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

MS. JACKSON:  Yes?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.  To shampoo.  That's

what both of the bowls is used for.

MS. STEELE:  So where do you -- where do

you keep the mop?

THE WITNESS:  The mop?

MS. STEELE:  Uh-huh.

THE WITNESS:  It's outside.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Outside the shop?

A Uh-huh.  Well, we leave it out there until it drip,

until the water go and then we bring it in.  There is
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another part that could be -- it could be in.

Q Okay.  Do you have storage closets in this place?

MS. TOLBERT:  No.

THE WITNESS:  Huh-uh.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Nothing in the back?  No place to store brooms or

mops or buckets or anything like that?

A No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Ms. Porter, if

you could move your hand, because it's hard for

us to see you, what you're saying.

THE WITNESS:  Oh, I'm sorry.  No.  It's

not a closet that you store brooms and mops in.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q You don't have anything like that in your shop?

A No.  It's not a closet there.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Any other

questions for Ms. Porter?

MS. SULLIVAN:  I have a question.

So you shampoo and work in the salon as

well?  Is that what I'm understanding, and you

run it?

THE WITNESS:  Well, I just kind of go in

and make for sure everything is in order.
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MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.  But you current --

you have used that shampoo bowl yourself

shampooing a client?

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh, yeah, I have used it

myself.  Yeah, uh-huh.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Shampooing a client?

THE WITNESS:  Right.  Uh-huh.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Let me just call

Ms. Mackey?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Ms. Mackey

Tolbert?

MR. HOGAN:  Tolbert.  

MS. TOLBERT:  (Nodding head up and down.)

WHEREUPON, 

ADRIENNE MACKEY TOLBERT, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Ms. Tolbert, state your name for the record, please.

A My name is Adrienne Mackey Tolbert.

Q Ms. Tolbert, did -- have you seen this inspection

report that we've been talking about --

A Yeah.  Yes, sir.
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Q -- it's signed by Ms. Simpson?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you talk to Ms. Simpson about the report?

A She had just told me that the board had come by, and

I was not under the assumption that I had violations, you

know, she didn't go into detail because she is new there.

I was at my other salon and she's been off because of

surgery.  It's her daughter, Dominique -- 

Q So Ms. Porter -- 

A -- so Dominique doesn't know the formality, she just

works there.

Q So Ms. Porter's daughter is -- 

A Like when she -- 

Q Ms. Porter has previously testified, this is her

daughter, Dominique Simpson?

A Yes.

Q Right?

A Uh-huh.

Q Now, you, Ms. Tolbert, you're saying that you didn't

understand that there were violations under this

inspection?

A Not until the letter came.

Q Okay.

A Not until the letter came.

Q Okay.  Did you talk to Ms. Simpson specifically
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about the plumbing issue that was marked on the

inspection?

A No.  I just got the letter and just called the

board.

Q Did you ask Ms. Simpson whether or not, for example,

that she told Ms. Smith that the sink didn't work?

A No.  I just asked -- I called the board and then I

talked to Dominique when she got off, because she wasn't

available before I called the board.

Q And was this --

A So I just called to see what was going on.  Then

Ms. Kelli?

Q Kersey.

A Kersey.

Q Right.

A Okay.  She told me to check the sheet, so I checked

the sheet, and you barely could see, on the yellow sheet

you barely could see what was going on, so I did finally

see the little checkmarks because I -- I didn't know

until I got the letter to like go over it, like, oh, I

did get some citings.

Q Okay.

A So --

Q And then is it your testimony you've never had

problems with that sink leaking?
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A No.  No problems.

Q And that that bucket was there just because that's

where you kept it?

A It's always there.  We've had inspectors galore come

through both salons and the bucket has been there, the

towels have been there.  So I guess being -- I mean, what

am I trying to say in words.  It's been overlooked by

other inspectors so I guess I just didn't think it was an

issue.  I don't have a problem like with it, I understand

the -- the rules and the regs.  But I'm just saying the

board is so inconsistent with inspections, if they don't

check it -- I've been in business 21, if they didn't

check it from day one, I guess I never thought it was a

problem.  So it's -- it's my fault, I have to now go on

the yellow sheet and make sure everything is sufficient,

but what I'm saying, my complaint is I guess I want the

board to be so consistent with the yellow sheet, what

they check off, to let me know when I'm out of order, you

know.  And then we didn't get any warnings, just straight

to a fine.  Like other inspectors would always come

through and be like, Adrienne, get this, sweep this hair

up, do this, this, that, that, and then to get a letter

and this says fine, I mean that kind of like took my

breath away.  Because 21 years I've never had a problem

with the board, never had any issues.
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Q Okay.  Is there anything further you want to make

the committee aware of at this time?

A No.

MR. HOGAN:  Then I pass the witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Board have any

questions?

MS. FORD:  I do.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MS. FORD:  The young lady who was in the

facility at the time, she's not here to verify

her testimony --

THE WITNESS:  Right.

MS. FORD:  -- the testimony from the

inspectors?

MS. PORTER:  I could get her on the phone

and put her on loud speaker.

MS. FORD:  I don't think that's -- I'm not

sure that's what we need to do.  I was just

wondering if she was here present to testify?

MS. PORTER:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Any other

questions?

MS. SULLIVAN:  I have a question that may

not be relevant, but do you also have a

barber's license for your salon?
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THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Yes.  We got inspected

two weeks ago.

MS. FORD:  Okay.  So you own two salons?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

MS. FORD:  And the towel issue, I mean,

you have cabinets for towels?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, we have --

MS. FORD:  So you know that they need to

be covered?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

MS. FORD:  You know that?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

MS. FORD:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

MS. FORD:  You know whether or not

inspection --

THE WITNESS:  I have this huge -- I have

this huge cabinet, and we have this like, it

looks like a TV stand, and we have an overflow

of towels, and so like when we run out we put

them -- we transfer.

MS. FORD:  But you --

THE WITNESS:  But now I know, I mean, I

know, but it's just -- it's never been

addressed, so my bad.
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MS. JACKSON:  But it sounds like some

things were addressed in the past that you

weren't written up for, as in what you just

stated -- 

THE WITNESS:  What do you mean?

MS. JACKSON:  -- in, Adrienne, sweep up

the hair, etc.

THE WITNESS:  I mean, like, when

inspectors come, no matter what salon I'm at,

you know, that is they may -- may be like, you

know, close this, keep this closed.  I mean

it's just little stuff we don't get wrote up,

that's what I'm saying.  She may -- whoever it

may be because we've had a lot in 21 years, but

she may say, you know, sweep up after such and

such, you know, just this, that, and the other,

but I've never been, paper, you know, on paper,

I've never had to come here.

MS. JACKSON:  Have they mentioned it?

Have they mentioned the towels in the past?

THE WITNESS:  Ma'am?

MS. JACKSON:  Have they mentioned --

THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.  No, ma'am.

That's what I'm saying, it's new to me.  But, I

mean, it's -- no, we haven't.  I mean I'm
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looking at your face and you look --

MS. JACKSON:  Oh, I was just looking at --

she started to say something and she caught my

attention.

THE WITNESS:  Oh, yeah, I mean, but -- I

mean, I'm -- I'm well aware now that all of

them needs to be contained.

MS. FORD:  I'm good.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  I would just call

Ms. Kersey briefly to make a --

WHEREUPON, 

KELLI KERSEY, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Have we gone through your recommendation yet?

A Huh-uh.

Q I can't remember.

State your name for the record and your position

with the department.

A Kelli Kersey, section chief, Arkansas Department of

Health, cosmetology section.

Q Your review of the inspection report, discussions

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 136

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

with Ms. Smith, your knowledge of the laws, have you

made -- are you prepared to make the recommendation to

the committee today?

A Yes.  $100, $50 for each fine.

MR. HOGAN:  All right.  I'll pass the

witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Any

questions for Ms. Kersey?

Okay.  Any -- any questions by the board

of Ms. Kersey?  Okay.  Is the board ready -- or

do you have anything further, Mr. Hogan?

MR. HOGAN:  We have nothing further.  I --

I don't know if --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Ms. --

Ms. Tolbert or Ms. -- do you have anything

further?

MS. TOLBERT:  Well, the shampoo bowl does

work, we just keep the mop bucket in there.

The -- the mop bucket is always dry.  We can't

have four stylists in the shop and working on

one bowl, that's just impossible; so --

MS. PORTER:  And she never did run water

through the sink to -- to see if it was

leaking, she just assumed that.  My daughter

said she told her that it -- that sink does
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work, it does not leak at all.  But she just

written it up, she didn't check the -- the

bucket to see if water was in it, she did not

run the sink to see if it was leaking, because

if it was leaking, it would leak right there,

but she just written it up.  She didn't go

and -- and look actually in there and say, oh,

there is water in the bucket or let me turn

this on and see if it's leaking.  None of that

was done, so that's just -- I don't feel like

it's fair for her to say something is leaking

and she never did check it.

MS. JACKSON:  Were you there?

MS. PORTER:  Was I there?

MS. JACKSON:  Yeah.  Were there that day?

MS. PORTER:  No, I wasn't there, but I

goes there periodically to check for her since

she has two salons, I just goes in to make for

sure that everything is clean.  But like she

said, though, bundles of the towels, because we

have a lot of them.  But I do know that the

sink does not leak, and she should have ran

water in there to see.  The bucket is dry.

MR. HOGAN:  You understand the testimony

is that your daughter told her that the sink
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was not working?

MS. PORTER:  My daughter, when I asked

her, she said that state board came by and she

said the lady asked me did the sink work and

she said, I told her that the sink worked,

that's just an empty bucket there.  She said

she didn't -- she did not tell her that, that

it was not leaking.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Well, you

understand there is a discrepancy you're saying

that your daughter said one thing and Ms. Smith

is saying that she said another, and it's up to

the board to determine what testimony they will

credit.  I mean I understand what you're here

to say and we recognize from your answer that

you weren't physically there --

MS. PORTER:  And I --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- during the

time when Ms. Smith was, but you're saying now,

you know, what -- you're -- you're giving the

board the account that you -- you got from your

daughter, so but it's up to the board to

determine which version they believe.

MS. PORTER:  Because see she's at work,

but I can have them to bring her to the phone
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and --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Well, she -- no,

if -- if she was going to be, she would be, you

know, here -- or maybe a written a statement,

you know, notarize it or whatever and bring it

too.  But, again, that's -- those are -- that's

not -- and I'm sure it's happened before, but

the board will have to determine which --

which -- what -- what testimony they credit.

Okay.  Ms. Ford?

MS. FORD:  You covered it.  It's okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Oh, okay.

MR. HOGAN:  Was there something else,

Ms. Smith, that you needed to add to this

discussion?

MS. SMITH:  I -- honestly, I asked her

what the bucket was there for, and she said,

oh, it doesn't work; so I didn't turn the water

on because I took her word.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  You assumed that

she was talking about -- by "it" you assumed

she meant the sink?

MS. SMITH:  The shampoo bowl -- 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And you didn't

question her any further about -- 
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MS. SMITH:  -- it was a bucket underneath

and -- 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- what "it" was

or, you know, anything?

MS. SMITH:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Okay.

MS. SMITH:  And I just, if it -- if it was

leaking really bad, like I assumed, I didn't

want to make a bigger mess so I just didn't

turn it on.  I just took her word and left --

and wrote it and left, after I explained.

MR. HOGAN:  All right.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  I mean, you

didn't look further at the bucket to see if it

had water in it or anything like that?

MS. SMITH:  I just saw the bucket and I

asked her what it was for.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  You just saw a

bucket.  Right.  Okay.  All right.

MR. HOGAN:  All right.  I think everybody

has had a chance to testify, so if there is --

are we ready to go?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Deliberate?

MR. HOGAN:  We have the recommendation,
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and unless you all have something else that you

want the committee to be aware of that's not

yet been mentioned, then we can turn it over to

the committee for deliberations.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  We will

go off the record and allow the board to

deliberate.

(WHEREUPON, the Committee retired to 

deliberate, off the record, from 11:41 a.m. to 

11:43 a.m. and returned with the following 

decision:) 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

We're back on the record In The Matter of

Adrienne's Salon.  The board has deliberated

and is now ready to entertain a motion, and

I'll turn it over to the chairman.

MS. ANDERSON:  We have a motion and go

ahead.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Yes.  I make a motion that

we go with what the Arkansas Department of

Health has recommended for the 50-dollar fine

for the -- for No. 2, the plumbing, properly

maintained; and 13, 50-dollar fine for that as

well, so 100-dollar fine.

MS. ANDERSON:  All right.  And do we have
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a second for that motion?

MS. JACKSON:  I second.

MS. ANDERSON:  All right.  We have a

motion and a second, and we'll call them out

individually.  Adrian?

MR. TABB:  Aye.

MS. STEELE:  Aye.

MS. PECK:  Aye.

MS. JACKSON:  Aye.

MS. FORD:  Aye.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Aye.

MS. ANDERSON:  Motion passed unanimously.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  The

board's decision to uphold the 100-dollar fine

will be put in written form and it will be

mailed to -- to you, Ms. Mackey Tolbert.  And

the -- any rights that you have to appeal that

decision will be explained in the written

decision.

All right?  Thank you for being here

today.  And that concludes this matter.

(WHEREUPON, at 11:44 a.m., the 

above-entitled proceedings were concluded.) 

---o--- 
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ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING 

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PETITIONER 

v. 

SOLAR NAILS AND HAIR SALON RESPONDENT 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And we'll bring

the next matter before the board up, which is

the --

MR. HOGAN:  Solar Nails.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Solar Nails.  Is

there someone representing -- oh, you're --

okay.  I'm sorry.

MR. HOGAN:  Yes.  Is your name -- are

you -- is your name Jerry or Jerry or --

MS. HO:  Me?

MR. HOGAN:  Yes, ma'am.  What is it?

MS. HO:  Well, first name is spelled. 

Q-u-y-e-n, Quyen, and the last name is Thi

Ho.

MR. HOGAN:  Quyen?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Quyen, Queen Ho?

MR. HOGAN:  Is it pronounced -- do you

pronounce it Quyen or --

MS. HO:  Quyen.

MR. HOGAN:  Quyen.  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Quyen Ho?
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MS. HO:  Yeah, Quyen Ho.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Ms. Ho is representing Solar Nails.  And you

are the owner?

MS. HO:  I am the owner.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Owner?  All

right.

MS. HO:  I'm here by myself.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

right.  And, of course, representing the board

is Mr. Rick Hogan.  

Mr. Hogan, will you be presenting

testimony today?

MR. HOGAN:  We will.  Chris Nicklaus and

Ms. Kelli Kersey will be testifying today

for -- and we have a 30-page document, which

includes photographs.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  Ms. Ho had a chance to look at

those.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  To look at that?

Did you give her a copy of the -- of the -- 

MR. HOGAN:  Chris, do you -- do you have a

copy that you can give for --

MS. HO:  Talking about that one or --

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 145

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

MR. HOGAN:  There you go.  He's going to

get you a copy right there, Ms. Ho.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Let

me go ahead and swear you in at this time.

Will you raise your right hand, Ms. Ho, and

Mr. Nicklaus, and Ms. Kersey?

(WHEREUPON, the witnesses were sworn by

the Hearing Officer.)

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  And

I'll give you a few minutes to look through

those documents that Mr. Hogan wants to have

the board consider.

MS. HO:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And you look

through those and tell me if it's all right

with you that we consider those.

MS. HO:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  Are you ready to proceed,

Ms. Ho?

MS. HO:  Yes, sir.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Do

you have any objection to the documents that

have been proposed to be considered by the

board to those -- to that 30-page document?

MS. HO:  Uh-huh.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Do you have any

objection?  Do you object to it being

considered?  Yes or no?

MS. HO:  A little bit, yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  And what

and why?

MS. HO:  Okay.  You know, like all the

things, the item listed in there, it really

happen, I think.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  You -- you just,

you disagree that some of those things

happened?

MS. HO:  I dis -- I disagree but, you

know, like disagree and agree.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MS. HO:  Because, you know, for them the

way they come the first time, I have no warning

about it.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MS. HO:  And I really that -- really

that -- really that when we get to the

recommendation of the state law cosmetology, so

they come, they make me a yellow sheet what

they saw.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.
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MS. HO:  And come straight to the fight,

you know.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  So --

MS. HO:  So we don't have word.  You know,

I can see why don't we have a warning?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  A warning?

MS. HO:  A warning.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Instead of just

straight to writing -- straight to being

written up?

MS. HO:  Uh-huh.  Uh-huh.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  I see

what you're saying.

Okay.  Now, that's something that you can

discuss in your testimony.

MS. HO:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  That -- that --

that doesn't -- what did you -- you just gave

her a copy of the pictures?

MR. ROBERTS:  A copy of the pictures.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Now, I'll

give you an opportunity to say that.

MS. HO:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  What you -- the

parts that you disagree with.
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MS. HO:  Uh-huh.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  But as far as

the documents, the -- the 30-page document that

Mr. Hogan described.

MS. HO:  Uh-huh, yeah.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  I need to know

if you have any objection to that, to the board

looking at that and considering it?  

MS. HO:  (Shaking head from side to side.)

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Then you need to

say no out loud so she can -- the court

reporter --

MS. HO:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- she can't

read a shaking of your head.

MS. HO:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  So Ms. --

then if Ms. Ho has no objection, the 30-page

exhibit will be entered into the record as

state's exhibit.  

(WHEREUPON, Board's Exhibit No. 1 was 

received in evidence.) 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And then,

Mr. Hogan, you may call your first witness.

MR. HOGAN:  Thank you, Madam Hearing
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Officer Johnson.

We would ask also that the board be able

to take notice of the rules and regulations and

their statutes of cosmetology.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

right.  The rules and regulations and statutes

that govern the cosmetology board will be --

will take judicial notice of those, and they

will become part of the record.

MR. HOGAN:  We need to call Mr. Nicklaus,

please.

WHEREUPON, 

CHRIS NICKLAUS, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Chris, can you state your name and your position

with the department of health, please.

A Chris Nicklaus, Arkansas Department of Health,

cosmetology inspector.

Q Chris, did you have occasion to inspect this

facility up in Fayetteville, Arkansas?  And if so, when

did you perform that inspection?
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A Yes.  I was there 11/20/13.

Q So by November 20th, last year.  And this -- that

appears to have been signed by -- I don't know if that's

Terry or Jerry or Ho, is that --

A Yes (indicating).

Q Okay.  That was Quyen Ho?

A Yes.

MR. HOGAN:  Did you sign this document?

MS. HO:  Yes.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  I'm sorry.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q So you had -- you talked with Ms. Ho that day --

A Yes.

Q -- when you said that you were there; correct?

A Yes.

Q Chris, if you would, can you take the photographs

which start on Page 12, and use those -- and use those to

describe what you found the -- that day at this salon?

A Yes.  Photograph -- excuse me, Photograph No. 12 is

a waste receptacle by a waxing area that did not have a

lid.

Photograph 13 was in -- I'm assuming it was their

facial room, if I remember right, and they had towels

piled up in the corner of the room.

Photograph 14 was the shampoo area.  They had part
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of a chair sitting there.

Photograph 15 is a roll about, the top of a roll

about, and with color and bleach and a dirty brush and

roller.

Photograph 16 was a drawer that was open by the

pedicure area with all the salts exposed.

Photograph 17 is a used file and nail buffer.

Q Where was this setting?

A I can't remember if this was sitting on the station

or if it was in a drawer and I pulled it out.  I can't

recall.

Q And that's on a towel?

A Yes, sir.

Photograph 18 is the pedicure area.  She had clean

towels sitting out on the top of another roll about.

Photograph 19 was in the haircutting section of the

salon.  I'm not sure if that was candy or wax that was on

that station, I didn't touch it; so --

Q Talking about the white, the -- what appears to be

the white --

A It was pink.

Q -- substance that's on the top of that counter?

A It was pink, whatever it was.

Q Pink?

A Yes.
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Picture 20 is another used nail buffer and a pair of

dirty nail nippers, and these -- I do recall these were

in the drawer.

Q What's the -- on the end of the nail clippers?  Or

whatever are those called?  The --

A Nail nippers.

Q Nippers?

A I believe on the right side of that we're looking at

dried glue, and right up there on the left, or the blade

to the left is cuticle.

Q Twenty-one, what do you have there?

A Twenty-one we have dirty and clean towels sitting

out at pedicure bowls.

Q These tubs that were -- at the end of the seat

there, did you look inside those to see if they were

clean or had been cleaned?

A They looked clean, if I recall.  Yes.

Q The first one here on the bottom of the picture

there --

A Uh-huh.

Q -- it looks like -- I can't tell, but that looks

like something in the bottom of that tub or --

MS. ANDERSON:  It's a liner.

THE WITNESS:  I think it's a liner.

MS. ANDERSON:  It's a --
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BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Oh, okay.  Page 22?

A Page 22 is the manicure area.  We had, again, clean

and dirty towels sitting out at each station.

Q And these items, the -- this little box looking,

what is that?

A Those are handtowels sitting on top of nail dryers.

I'm not -- 

Q Nail dryers?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  Are those --

A Or nail curers, either one of them.  I'm not sure

what they were.

Q Did they appear to be clean?

A Huh-uh.

Q They were not?

A No.

Q Page 23?

A Page 23, this -- if I remember right, this was in

the haircutting portion of the salon.  Again, there is

the pink stuff again, I don't know if it was candy or if

it was wax; and a neck duster that would not budge

because it was stuck in the wax.

Q So this brush was actually affixed to the counter

there and stuck to it; is that correct?
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A Correct.

Q You tried to move that and you weren't able to do

so?

A Correct.

Q And this pinkish color, that appears to be wax that

was utilized in the waxing --

A I'm not sure if it was wax or taffy.  I don't know

what it was, I didn't touch it, I don't know.

Q Okay.  Did you ask Ms. Ho about it?  What --

A I do believe so, I did walk her around so I'm going

to assume I did ask her, yes.

Q What was her response to the items that you pointed

out?

A She said -- I walked her around and showed her every

picture with -- in every part of the salon that I took

her to, and she said, yes, she would get to -- she would

get it taken care of.  Yeah.

Q Going back to your Page 8 of your inspection report,

just quickly, No. 5, "salon license current," she did not

have a salon license that was current and up to date; is

that correct?

A Correct.

Q Looking at the bottom of Page 8 in the right-hand

corner, is that your handwriting, or whose handwriting is

that?
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A Yes.  That is my handwriting.

Q It has when Ho 81005, 7/3/13, expired, is that

her -- is that her salon license or is that her

practitioner's license or --

A The -- that is her practitioner license.

Q And that was not current either, as you noted in

No. 7 there on your inspection report; correct?

A Correct.

Q Health and safety rules were not posted at the entry

to the salon; correct?

A Correct.

Q You also cited 5.1(B)(3), "All posted license are

current," and you noted, that's your handwriting, that

neither the practitioner nor the salon license is current

nor posted; correct?

A Correct.

Q Under 5.1(C), you have noted, "Hand cleaning soap at

each lavatory."  Can you explain what that means?

A She had -- if I remember right, there was two

restrooms, there might have been one.  She did not have

any soap or paper towels or anything for customers to

wash or dry their hands with.

Q And, of course, you've already described in some of

your photographs the sanitary towels or hand drying

device that is not being clean; correct?  Under No. 4,
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5.1(C)(4), "Hand cleaning soap at each lavatory," and

then next one is "sanitary towels and hand drying

device"?

A Correct.  For the restrooms.

Q And then under No. 8, you have cited, "Equipment

furnishings, fixtures, clean and repaired"?

A Correct.

Q Under No. 13, you've got "Minimum equipment," you've

got the waste receptacles, which you have a photograph

of.  "Receptacles for closed towels," again, you

testified about your photograph, which is on Page 13, I

believe, which indicates the towels laying in the floor;

is that correct?

A Correct.

Q "Closed cabinets to hold clean towels," were there

any -- did you observe any cabinetry in the -- in the

salon that she had towels and other equipment stored in

that was clean or --

A If I recall correctly, she did have cabinetry at one

of the sinks in the pedicure area that she did have

towels in, but I think the towels in picture -- Picture

18 were just overflow from that.

Q Okay.  And then there were also towels on Page 21 at

the end of each of the -- is that permissible to have

towels out like that in -- and 22?
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A Yes.  Towels were out at the pedicure stations and

the manicure stations.

Q All right.  You've also cited in No. 21, "All

supplies, instruments that cannot be disinfected are

disposed of immediately after use"; so what are you

referring to specifically there?

A The nail buffers and nail files.

Q Okay.  And then, "Liquid, creams stored, labeled in

clean, closed containers."  What is that?  Is there a

photograph that shows that?

A I believe that was for Picture 16.

Q Page 16, I noticed that -- I'm sorry?

A Picture 16.

Q Yeah.  Okay.  And those are salts?  Is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And did they have any lids or anything to keep

those --

A She does have lids and then -- or a lid in the

drawer, but they were not on them and the drawer was

open; so --

Q And those salts are used for what purpose, exactly?

A I believe they are used in their pedicure baths.

Q Okay.  And that removes excess skin or -- I'm out of

my league here, I know.  I don't know what -- but, I

mean, I guess what I'm asking, would -- would -- would
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this indicate that this is new salts or that it's been

used or can you tell from there?

A I'm assuming they are new salts, they just were not

covered.

Q Okay.  So the final thing, only -- about minimum

equipment under 6.4(C)(3), "Only operable or functioning

equipment on premises."  What -- what did you mean by

that particular line?

A I was referring to the bottom part of a manicuring

stool that was in the shampoo area, was Picture 14.

Q Okay.  Oh, I see this -- this chair appears to --

should have had a cushion or some type of seat on top of

it?

A (Indicating.)

Q There is no indication that --

A Correct.

Q -- that that's on that particular stool?

A Correct.

Q I notice a "wet floor" sign.  Was the floor wet or

anything like that when you were there?

A No, I think it was just against -- it was just there

against the wall.

Q Just where the sign was.

Is there anything further, Chris, that you need to

make the committee aware of that you haven't previously
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testified to?

A (Shaking head from side to side.)

MR. HOGAN:  I'll pass the witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

Ms. Ho, do you have any questions --

MS. HO:  Yes, I do.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- for Mr.

Nicklaus?

MS. HO:  Yeah.  The day he came to my

salon, about a towel laying on the -- the boost

of the chair, and the towels was already laid

on the table, I did not know the law or the

regulation about that.  I put them there ready

for a customer, for like a decoration or

something, you know, is my thought --

MS. SULLIVAN:  This isn't a question,

y'all.

MS. HO:  In my thought, I --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Right, I know,

but there is -- there is a little bit of a

language barrier.  So I understand you -- you

don't have a question, you want to explain

about the --

MS. HO:  Yeah, I want to explain.  Sorry.

Yeah.  I have no question for you, Chris.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  I'll

give -- hold your explanation.

MS. HO:  Okay.  Yes.  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Just -- just --

we'll get into it, but just a minute.  I just

want to finish with Mr. Nicklaus.  Any more

questions by the board of Mr. Nicklaus?

Okay.  Anything further?

MR. HOGAN:  Let me just call Ms. Kersey.

I have nothing further for him.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Then

we're going to -- and then we're going to -- he

is going to -- he's got to question Ms. Kersey

and then we're going to come to you, okay?

MS. HO:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

WHEREUPON, 

KELLI KERSEY, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Ms. Kersey, will you state your name and your

position with the Arkansas Department of Health.
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A Kelli Kersey, section chief, Arkansas Department of

Health, cosmetology section.

Q Okay.  Ms. Kersey, there are -- I'm looking at --

starting at Page 25 and following, a letter dated

September 28th of last year, and attached to that are

several documents, inspection reports, as well as the

violations summary on Page 29 and 30.  Can you summarize

those for the members of the committee to try to bring

them up to date about the prior practices or history of

this particular salon?

A Yes.  This -- we brought this salon before you guys

because it's another repeat offender.  On the last

inspection, let me get to that page, 26, she -- they were

inspected on July 26, 2012.

Q This is Page 26 of the documents here?

A Of the documents, yeah.  On Page 30, that is a

breakdown of those violations that have not been paid.

Q So there would have been a Finding of Fact,

Conclusions of Law and Order citing those violations that

would have been sent to Ms. Ho?

A Correct.

Q And those were not appealed; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And so those were final?

A Yes.
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Q And they have not been paid?

A They have not been paid.

Q How much is left outstanding for prior violations

that have yet to be paid?

A $425.

Q $425?

A Uh-huh.

Q Total?

A Total.

Q Okay.  What type of previous violations did -- can

you kind of -- I guess what I'm curious is, the

violations that you've heard testimony about today, was

there a history of those similar violations back last

year when -- in 2012, I guess, when this facility or

salon was inspected?

A Yes.  The salon license was not current at that

time; the posted one was not current, obviously; the

equipment was not in good repair; they didn't have enough

covered towels; the bottles -- their stuff wasn't

labeled; and all supplies and instruments that can't be

disinfected.  So there are multiple that are the same

violations.

Q Did Ms. Ho attend that hearing that was conducted

in -- I guess, would that have been in 2012?

A Yes.
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I don't believe that she attended.

Q And as far as your -- we're concerned, of course,

that is a final order and it shouldn't be subject to

this, only to show previous violations?

A (Nodding head up and down.)

Q But your recommendation today, and what you're

recommending to the committee today, is how much and what

is that based on?

A Well, it's the -- the breakdown is $800 but, again,

we had put two $50 in there for Rule No. 4, so we'll take

one of those out, everything else is broken down

correctly, so it would be $750 for today's violations.

Q And you're looking at what particular page?

A Page 29.

Q So Page 30 is the previous violation?

A Uh-huh.

Q Which have not been paid and that's not subject to

today's hearing.  But Page 29 is for the violations this

time, and your recommendation is that the committee fine

how much, $450?

A 750.

Q $750?

A $750.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  I'll pass the witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 164

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

Ms. Ho, do you have any questions for

Ms. Kersey about what she just testified to?

BY MS. HO:  

Q So how much?  I just want to like, I'm here today?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  She's

recommending -- her testimony is -- she's

stated in her --she's recommending a 750-dollar

fine.  For --

MS. HO:  For everything?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- for just

the -- just today's violations.

THE WITNESS:  Just today's.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  She's also

testified that there is past violation fines,

$425 for past --

MS. HO:  Uh-huh, yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- violations

that have not been paid.  That has not been

paid.

MS. HO:  Okay.  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  But just today

she's recommending 750 for today's violation.

MS. HO:  Okay.  And if she had asked about

the wax or something when she had come in my

salon, because the chair in the back room is a
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waxing room before -- before that, and the

chair was broken, so I put everything like, you

know, I don't use that one, that room, I

already explain to him.  So I move one up in my

wax room and I use a chair instead like a --

like a bed, you know.  So that's the -- the

bed -- the bed for people to lay down and got

the wax, it's been broken, so I don't use it.

And all the wax forever, I put in there like,

you know, like this post or something like

that.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  You're saying

that chair that --

MS. HO:  No, the chair in the wax room is

broken.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  That's broken,

you don't use it?

MS. HO:  I don't use it, that's why I put

on number, let me --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Yes, go to the

picture.

MS. HO:  Go to the picture.  On number.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Is it 14?

MS. HO:  Well, let me see.

MR. HOGAN:  Yeah, No. 14, I believe.
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MS. HO:  Not No. 14.

MR. HOGAN:  I'm not sure that's a question

for Ms. Kersey, but I'm --

MS. HO:  Yeah, yeah.  Give me -- give me a

minute, please.  Give me a minute, please.

MR. HOGAN:  I'm concluded with my -- if

you want to turn it over to her, please.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  Do

you want to go ahead and just -- just tell the

board -- because you don't have -- it doesn't

sound like you have a question for Ms. Kersey,

you just wanted to talk about -- let's talk

about --  

WHEREUPON, 

QUYEN HO, 

having been called for examination, and having been first 

duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, was examined and 

testified, as follows: 

DIRECT TESTIMONY 

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Actually, I -- you

know, I tried to tell her that, you know, a

couple of items in there, I think that I did

not violate anything right like that, so the

price is like a little bit too much for me, you

know what I mean?
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  What --

what do you disagree with?  What do you think

that you should not be charged with violating?

THE WITNESS:  That's why I talk about a

waxing area.  

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  

THE WITNESS:  And I try to find a picture

again.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Waxing

areas.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Okay.  No. 12.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  No. 12?

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, No. 12 -- 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  -- that's why the back

room --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  That's in the

bathroom?

MS. JACKSON:  Back room, like all the way

in a back room.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Back room is.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Not -- not a

room where you have customers?

THE WITNESS:  No.
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  This is a back

room?

MS. JACKSON:  Yeah.

MS. HO:  Yes.  I used to have a customer

there before, but the chair the customer sit on

is broken.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Is broken, so

you don't use that room any more?

THE WITNESS:  I don't use that room

anymore.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  No, no, that's why --

it's a little bit mess right there because I

don't use that room, and that's why the door --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  So No. 12 --

THE WITNESS:  No. 12, yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- where this

waste basket is shown with all the paper in

it --

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- you're saying

you don't use that room -- 

THE WITNESS:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- for customers

anymore?
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THE WITNESS:  No.  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I explained to him

that day when he came.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Okay.

But let's go -- go to No. 13 and see if you

have any objection to that.

THE WITNESS:  No. 13?  I have no idea.

I -- I don't complain about that.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  About the

towels, all the -- the towels.  Is that towels?

MR. HOGAN:  That's towels.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  And No. 14, it was a broken

chair --

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  But now, let me

ask you -- let me ask you.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Is this where

you have customers?  Do you have customers in

this area?  I'm just asking.

MR. HOGAN:  Page 13, she's referring to.
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THE WITNESS:  I really cannot tell what is

that.

MR. HOGAN:  That -- that looks like a what

do you call, where sometimes they're face down

and --

THE WITNESS:  Oh, that's, your -- that's

why -- that's why I said that chair is broken,

that's why it fell apart, you know, and we

don't use that room any more.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  That -- this

chair is broken? 

MR. HOGAN:  This chair is broken too?

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.  That's -- that's

the -- the one that we use for facial and the

waxing, it's been broken.  You see the one, you

see the cushion, that's lower part.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  So you're saying

on this one on Page 13, it's broken?

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.  

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  This chair is

broken -- 

THE WITNESS:  It was broken, in the back

room.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And you don't

use this anymore?
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THE WITNESS:  No.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  In the back

room?

THE WITNESS:  No.

MR. HOGAN:  Why are the towels in there?

THE WITNESS:  What is this now?

MR. HOGAN:  On Page 13, those towels in

the bottom?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Thirteen,

Page 13.

MR. HOGAN:  If you don't utilize that

room, why are the towels in there?

THE WITNESS:  Oh, that's not a towel.

That's like a cotton -- that's like a cotton,

you know, cotton.  That's not a towel, the

white part.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  The white part?

Uh-huh.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, the white part in that

drawer, because whenever I go use it, the

cotton, or whatever is in there, when I pull

the drawer out, that's a cotton, not a towel.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Cotton?

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, cotton not a towel.

MR. HOGAN:  Yeah, cotton.
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MR. NICKLAUS:  Cotton, c-o-t-t-o-n.

MS. ANDERSON:  Yeah, it's a big box.  It's

in a -- 

MS. MALLORY:  Cotton, she is using.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Well, if the

other members of the board know what she's

talking about --

MS. SULLIVAN:  She uses --

MS. ANDERSON:  Each box of cotton, but why

is it not in the box?  It doesn't add up.  It

doesn't add up.  

COURT REPORTER:  I didn't hear that.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Just a minute

let me clarify for the court reporter.

Ms. Trish Anderson said, in -- in her --

because she believes it is a big large box of

cotton, c-o-t-t-o-n.

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And her question

was, if it's cotton, that she thinks it appears

to be, why is it not in the container or the

box that it comes in?

THE WITNESS:  It's not on the floor but I

think it's in the drawer.

MS. JACKSON:  It's in the what?

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 173

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

MR. HOGAN:  Drawer?

THE WITNESS:  This was in the drawer.

MR. HOGAN:  Are you looking at Page 13?

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, on Page 13 right now.

Yeah.

MR. HOGAN:  At the drawer?

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  I was really

confused --

MR. HOGAN:  Well, it looks like it's in

the floor.  What kind of drawer is this?  I

mean, it looks like a -- it looks like the

floor.

THE WITNESS:  No, sir.  It's not the --

it's not on the floor.  Like we have a drawer

and on top of the drawer, before that display

with the wax pot, and the cotton got to be in

the drawers, you know, whenever we do the wax,

we pull the drawer out, we got cotton and wipe

up the oil or whatever, so it's like a drawer.

It's on the -- in the room that we don't use

anymore.  Even now we don't use that anymore.

We don't use anything in that room anymore.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  Okay.  Go

to No. 14 then.

THE WITNESS:  Go to No. 14.  Now that's
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broken chair.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Yes, ma'am.

THE WITNESS:  Broken chair, like the top

part, upper chair is separate, and I just put

it in the corner, across in the corner so it

won't get on any -- everyone way, you know,

everybody's way.  You know, so I wait for some

man come in, like, to fix it for me.  I keep

the top part, and that's why so, you know,

whenever I have somebody, you know, available

or somebody can help me to put them back

together --

MR. HOGAN:  So this looks like a -- 

THE WITNESS:  -- and it was there.

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q This looks like a sink or something there?

A It's a washing --

Q Basin for washing people's hair and so forth?

A Yeah.  Uh-huh.

Q Okay.  Now, does that work?  Do you utilize that

washing basin?

A The sink work -- the sink work or whatever or the

chair?

Q This washing basin here, the --
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HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  The sink.  Do

you --

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Do you use that?

A Yeah, the sink -- the sink work.  So, you know, on

the chair left, set on the left corner and my, the hair

stylist always stay in the right side of the bowl to wash

somebody hair.  So it set there in the left, and it -- it

doesn't bother anybody there, you know, it just set

there.  And he told me that it's a -- it's not right to

do it so I remove it, you know.

Q Okay.  

A Yeah.

Q Page 15, it looks pretty bad.

A I think that's the -- that's my bad, I admit it.  I

have no complaint about that.

Q Sixteen is --

A The 16.

Q That's the salts?

A That's sea salt.

Q Sea salt?

A Yeah.  Sea salt.  And the lids was in a drawer but

the lids came apart.  I believe that when before he came

in, maybe somebody just done the pedicure and they did

not have a chance to close it back, but the lid next to
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it still, you know, it have a lid, but it's next to it.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  You're saying

that the lid, one of the lids is next, is

there --

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- right beside

them? 

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Where are the other lids for the salt?

A I -- I probably, you know, normally leave it right

there.  We have like a drawer with like four spots like

that, you see, and you have three in there.  But normally

when they have a customer, they got the lid, and I think

the lid stack on -- on top of each other.  You see only

one of them but there are three lids in top.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Oh.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q How often do you clean out that drawer with the

salts, the towel underneath that?

A You know, whenever I see it's dirty.  Normally we

clean the lid.  You know, we don't have like regular like
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every two day or three day, but whenever I see it's

dirty, I clean the lid, you know.

Q The towel down there, do you take that out regularly

and clean that towel that's underneath that?

A Yes, of course.  Whenever I see it's dirty, you

know.  Really I don't have a regular schedule for that.

Q Would you call this dirty, in your -- in your

opinion?  When you look at this picture, does that --

does that need to be cleaned -- cleaned, in your opinion?

A You know, in my opinion, this one that even the lid,

I don't see the lid very dirty or like a stain on the

lid.  This --

Q So you don't think this looks dirty?

A Yeah.  I think this looks okay.

Q It looks okay to you?

A Yeah.

Q This would be okay to you?

A Yeah.

Q Okay.  Page 17?

A Seventeen is wrong.

Q Okay.  You admit that?

A Uh-huh, it's wrong.

Q Eighteen, the towels are over --

A Yeah, 18, you know, like the towels really like --

it's really clean, we put up right there if we don't, you
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know, like we have like a closed lid whatever for it, so

we don't know that.  And whenever we he came by, he -- he

remind us that this is wrong, we fix it, because we don't

want to deal with the -- the fine, you know what I mean.

So I don't know before that but after that I try to fix

it, because it -- to pay the fine is no fun for me.

Q Okay.

A Yeah.

Q At the bottom, it looks like those are shoes, I

guess, for people?  On the bottom of Page 18, was that

flip flops?

A Flip flops.  Yeah.

Q Yes.  And they are in a plastic container down

there?

A Uh-huh.  Yeah.

Q Do you clean those?  Are those regularly cleaned --

A Yes.

Q -- and stored back after each --

A Yes.

Q Okay.  Page 19, what do you get there?  What is that

on top of the counter?

A Page 19, on top of the counter, let me see what is

it.  

This is by a hand station and look like when we do

the wax.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 179

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

Q Okay.

A And then we use a baby powder.  Some customer, it

wants like a powder before they do the wax, so we got

like -- it looks like a baby powder, I think.

Q Would you consider that to be clean, the station?

A Uh-huh.  Yeah, of course.

Q I mean, you wouldn't -- you wouldn't do anything

else to that station?

A No.  I --

Q Clean that off or anything?  That's okay to be like

that?

A Uh-huh.  Uh-huh.

Q Okay.  Page 20?

A Yes.

Q Now, that -- there has been testimony on these

nippers?

A Uh-huh.

Q Is that cuticle -- I mean is that somebody else's

skin?  I mean that looks pretty bad.  I don't know

what -- that looks bad to me and I don't know what I'm

talking about.  I mean why -- why -- would you consider

that to be clean?

A Absolutely need to be cleaned and this look -- 

Q You need to clean -- 

A It -- it look horrible to me.
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Q Yeah.  It does look pretty bad?

A Yeah.

Q So you admit that's a problem with the way that is?

A Yeah, yeah.  Yes.

Q That should have been cleaned before it's put back?

A Uh-huh.  Yes, sir.

Q Okay.  Twenty-one?

A Twenty-one.

Q I think you have testified about the towels being

open?

A Yeah.  Twenty-one, the towel laying on the chair

right there is a clean towel.  I thought we have it put

there already for customer, or some decoration, but when

he told me that shouldn't be there, because it like may

be contaminate or something before a customer use it, so

since he told me that, I never do it again.

Q Okay.  Page 22, again, the towel --

A Yes, okay.  I think I have same reason like I did on

Page 21, you know, I put them there ready for customer.

Q Okay.  Page 23, this one looks pretty bad.  Again,

this is not -- I guess that's wax that's accumulated on

this?

A This one is really part of the back room.

Q Okay.

A Normally I have like moving wall chair, moving wall
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thing, and I have a -- on the top I usually -- I used to

put all the waxing on the top, in the bottom I got the

cotton and whatever needed, wax strip, whatever needed

for the waxing.  But when it broken and this one I pull

to the back room, like a very big handout, and that room

we don't use anymore.  And this part of the thing in the

back room.

Q Do you still use this brush?

A No.  No.

Q The brush is not used?

A No.  This brush for the hand girls, they use it but

they don't use it any more and then we put in there like,

you know, we like -- we try to take a time and ask people

that you need to clean it up and all, you know, like

throw your stuff away because their personal stuff and I

cannot throw it away, but I see them around, you know,

like -- and look like ugly or something, I have to put

them back like in the back room.

Q So it's your testimony that you don't have any

members of the public or anybody that comes into this

room for services?

A (Shaking head from side to side.)

Q Is that what you're saying?

A No.  We have no service in that room for a long

time.
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Q No services, this is just storage that you put --

A It's like a storage, yeah, like a storage.  

Q And you put this back here?

A Yeah, I put it back there.

Q All right.

A I -- I -- I absolutely believe that I told him that

day, you know, I tried to explain what I -- when I walk

around with him.

Q Uh-huh.

A And I told him that.

Q That you didn't use that room?

A Uh-huh, yeah.

Q And that it was back there with storage?

A Yeah.  I told him that we don't use this room

anymore.

Q Okay.

A Yeah.

MR. HOGAN:  Chris, is that -- did she tell

you that?

MR. NICKLAUS:  I recall her saying that,

but this room that she's referring to is behind

the working area of the stylists' stations, and

that's where the waxing stuff was, and that's

also this cabinet, Picture 23, is where that

trashcan was sitting on the other side of, if I
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recall.  And right off from that room is

another room for the shampoo area.  So it's not

a back room, I wouldn't say, but it's a

functional room.

MR. HOGAN:  Were these towels or is this

cotton on Page 13?  When you observed --

MR. NICKLAUS:  You know, after looking, I

think it is cotton.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Is there anything else

you want to talk about?

THE WITNESS:  No, no.  If you have more

questions for me?

MR. HOGAN:  I'm sorry?

THE WITNESS:  If you have a question for

me, but I don't know what else --

MR. HOGAN:  Oh, any question for you?

BY MR. HOGAN:  

Q Why haven't you paid the previous violations?

A Okay.  For last year, I have already bad financial

problem.

Q Okay.

A I have a very bad one, I'm on the way to divorce my

ex and a lot crazy thing happen.  I did not have money to

take care of that.

Q Okay.  What efforts are you making -- I mean this --
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some of this stuff looks like it's in pretty bad, you

know, shape?

A Yeah.

Q The -- it doesn't look, if I were a member of the

public, I would think twice about going into your

facility if I saw this.

A Uh-huh.

Q What have you done since you -- Mr. Nicklaus visited

you in the last year, what have you done to clean any of

this up?

A Actually that, you know, like the thing he wrote on

the yellow pages, you know, I -- I -- I read it and I

tried to correct it, whatever he said.  And then, you

know, like for example, like this thing is being removed

already, or like the chair next to the shampoo -- shampoo

bowl, it's removed already, and I have a container, the

low place container for the towel, I have it already.

You know, I just like follow the yellow sheet and

whatever he say, I -- I fix it.

Q The -- like Page 15, for example?

A Page 15?

Q The brush that's obviously been used a number of

times and it looks like it's dirty, the roller, this

looks like a filthy station, that if I were a member of

the public, again, I would be reluctant to --
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A Yes.

Q -- utilize your services, given the appearance of

this.  Have you done anything to clean this up that's --

A Yes.  When he came back there, the hair stylist

wasn't there, but the day after that, the lady, once she

came, I told her about her problem and I told her that we

have to take care of it or we have to share the -- the

fine, you know, I told her.  And I think she will mess --

she take care of better now.

Q Other than you, is -- is this Ms. Castro or --

A Yeah.  Castro, Celi.

Q She's the only woman that works with you?

A Uh-huh.

Q Does she work for you or do y'all share the

ownership or --

A She -- she actually like -- like an independent

contract, you know, she work, she rent the station, so

actually that the stuff on No. 15 is her stuff.

Q So --

A You know, like she rent the station and work there.

Q Is she an esthetician or a cosmetologist or --

A Cosmetologist.  Yeah.

Q Okay.  So she does -- she can do any kind of

cosmetologist --

A Yes.
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Q -- in your shop?

A She can do pretty much everything.

Q How -- how often does she work?  Does she work every

time the place is open or do you tell her when to work or

not to work?

A No.  She have customer already, so when her customer

call in an appointment with her, she come to work.  She

not at the salon, like, every day, but she have her own

customer, you know, clientele.

Q Okay.

A So she came when they need her.

Q There are a number of pedicures chairs here --

A Uh-huh.

Q -- on Page 21?

A Yeah.

Q It looks like a pretty good size operation?

A Yeah.

Q But only the two of you work there?

A No.  I have more than that.  I have a lady named

Kelisha, she work there also, and I have a couple of

girls work there.  But right before I -- I told him --

told Chris that I just came back from out of town, and

the girls, they home and they work with my ex and they

got a big problem, so when the -- when -- by the time he

came in, they did not work there because they did not
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like my ex.  And then when I came back, they come back to

me, they come back work with me.  So when he came over

there, the girl just withdraw from the salon because they

did not like my ex, and then when I came back to the

salon, like couple weeks after I get back from Dallas,

and the girl came back work to me.  So, you know, I have

couple girls now and before that I have a couple girls

too.  But when he came to the salon only me and Celi, the

hand girl and me.

Q And these other -- these other ladies, are they

licensed cosmetologists that work with you?

A Uh-huh.

Q Or do they only do --

A Oh, they just manicuring license.

Q Okay.

A Yeah.  They manicuring license.

Q Okay.

A And now they -- they on the floor right now and

they -- everything okay now.

Q Okay.

A And I took over the business so, you know, I try to

take care of everything.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  I'm going to pass the

witness.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Any questions by
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the board?

Any other questions for Ms. Ho?

Okay.  Is there anything further from you,

Mr. Hogan?

MR. HOGAN:  We rest.  That's all.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.  All

right.  Anything further from you, Ms. Ho?

MS. HO:  No.

And the -- the last question, I am here

today, I am ready to pay for the fine, and I

don't know how much a total right now will

figure out for me and where I go to pay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.

MS. HO:  Yeah.

MS. JACKSON:  I do have one question.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.

MS. JACKSON:  Is her license valid now,

her shop license, or was it expired in 2011?

MS. KERSEY:  (Nodding head up and down.)

COURT REPORTER:  I'm sorry, what?

MS. KERSEY:  I'm sorry, she asked if it

was expired in 2011.

MR. HOGAN:  She asked if her license was

valid today or if it expired in 2011, and the

answer was from Ms. Kersey was it has expired
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in 2011?

MS. KERSEY:  (Nodding head up and down.)

MR. HOGAN:  And has not been renewed.

MS. KERSEY:  (Nodding head up and down.)

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.  

MS. HO:  And I want to take care of those

too and renew my license.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  All right.

MS. SULLIVAN:  I have a question.

Was it explained to you -- you said that

you didn't understand about the towels needed

to be in a closed cabinet?

THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

MS. SULLIVAN:  But you had been cited for

that before.  So you knew now that you needed

to have those in a closed container; right?

MS. HO:  I know it now.  Yeah.

MS. SULLIVAN:  But you had been in trouble

for that before too.

MS. HO:  Before, you know, it is really

confusing, because what the -- the time before

that, it was a female came to inspector, and

she say about at the hair station, not at the

nail station, you know, the -- the hair

station, the back.  And when we have the

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 190

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, INC. (501) 455-1170
WhitsonCCR@aol.com

CTAC, MAY 19, 2014

container for the back, but the one by the

pedicure, we didn't have it because she did not

mention us about that.  And I thought that's a

hair station and I believe that's for your --

your hair, you know, so you have to have a

closed container, and I tried to follow

whatever she say.  But when he came there, the

towel just out in the air by the nail station,

like by the pedicure station.  So the two

different, you know, two different things, you

know.  And I don't know how to explain it but

it's happened that way.

MS. SULLIVAN:  And you also -- did you

know that your salon license had been expired

since 2011 and it's currently 2014?

MS. HO:  You know I -- one time I told my

ex call and take care of that for me, but the

whole crazy thing, that's a personal thing, but

he told me he do it but he did not do it.

That's why, you know.

MS. KERSEY:  I do have one thing to add.

She did call Friday and ask if she could pay

instead of coming to the hearing, and we told

her, no, because it was multiple -- you know,

multiple, so --
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MS. ANDERSON:  Uh-huh.

MS. KERSEY:  -- she did call.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.  Until two -- from

2011 until Friday she had not called?

MS. KERSEY:  Correct.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Okay.

MS. ANDERSON:  I do have a question for

Ms. Ho.

Where did you -- did you get your license

in the state of Arkansas?

MS. HO:  Yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  You took your training

here?

MS. HO:  Uh-huh.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.

MS. JACKSON:  What does this suspended

mean over the expired?  Does that mean it's

expired and already suspended?

MS. KERSEY:  Yeah.  It was already

suspended because of her past, she had not paid

her past ones so we suspended it so she

couldn't just renew and not pay for the

violations.

MS. ANDERSON:  Uh-huh.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay.
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MR. HOGAN:  So in summary, what is the

current status of her license and what are you

recommending today?

MS. KERSEY:  Her -- her -- as it says,

that it's expired, it expired 12/31/2011, and

for her to be able to renew that, which she

would have to open a new salon at this point,

because after a year you can't renew, you have

to open a new salon.  So she would have to pay

the 800, the 425, and then $150 to renew her

license.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  And now, would there be

any --

MS. KERSEY:  To --

MR. HOGAN:  -- inspection of that facility

or can she just renew based on --

MS. KERSEY:  It would be just like a new

shop.

MR. HOGAN:  A new shop?

MS. KERSEY:  Once she -- once -- once we

got the application for the new shop, Chris

would go out and inspect as a new salon.  Oh,

Sondra, I'm sorry.  Hi, Sondra.

MS. SULLIVAN:  She also needs to renew her

personal license as well.
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MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  So do we have all of

it?  Is that clear to everybody, what --

MS. FORD:  What -- so today, it is about

the establishment, it's not about the

individual?

MS. KERSEY:  Correct.

MR. HOGAN:  All right.  Is there anything

else, Ms. Ho, that you want to make the

committee aware of?  Anything else you need to

say?

MS. HO:  Okay.  All about, you know, I

heard y'all discussing about the fine and renew

the license.  Can you again to tell me what I

need to do today about my shop license?

MR. HOGAN:  They are about to, I think.

MS. HO:  And to comply, you know, to

complies with everything, give me so like a

list, you know, from one to ten what I need to

do.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  They will

deliberate and they will -- they will come to a

decision as to what all the fines will be or

whatever if -- the -- the -- you know,

disposition on whatever they are going to do

about this, and they will let you know at the
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end of the hearing.

MS. HO:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  You will be able -- you will

be able before we leave today to know exactly

what you need to do to get back in good stead

with your license.

MS. HO:  Okay.

MR. HOGAN:  For your salon.

MS. HO:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Are there any

other questions?  Are we ready to go into

deliberation?

All right.  The board will now go into

deliberations, no further comments, the board

will deliberate off the record.  And we're

going off the record.

(WHEREUPON, the Committee retired to 

deliberate, off the record, from 12:33 p.m. to 

12:41 p.m. and returned with the following 

decision:) 

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  We're back on

the record before the -- In The Matter of Solar

Nails.

The board has deliberated and they are

ready to entertain a motion and I will turn it
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over to Ms. Anderson.

MS. ANDERSON:  Yes.  We have a motion and

a second, and I'm going to have Kim make that

motion.

MS. FORD:  I would like to make a motion

that we go with the recommendations for the

arrears to be paid of $425, and the current

fines, which are 750, all be paid in full prior

to a new application for a new salon being

accepted, which was going to be 150-dollar fee,

and that new -- an inspection for the new salon

be done prior to that salon opening, within the

next 30 to 60 days, if all fines and fees are

paid.

MS. SULLIVAN:  I second.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  We'll take a vote.

Adrian?

MR. TABB:  Aye.

MS. STEELE:  Aye.

MS. PECK:  Aye.

MS. JACKSON:  Aye.

MS. FORD:  Aye.

MS. SULLIVAN:  Aye.

MS. ANDERSON:  The committee has voted

unanimously in favor of the violations being
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paid for those motions.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  And someone will

get with Ms. -- Ms. Ho -- Quyen and explain

every specific --

MR. HOGAN:  Right.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- violation and

fine that has been imposed today so that she

understands.  

And you will be getting this in writing as

well --

MS. HO:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  -- which will

state what the board's action that they took

today, and it will also inform you of your

right to appeal it to the Court of Appeals if

you so desire.  But someone will make sure when

you leave here today that you understand what

fines the board has imposed today.

MS. HO:  Okay.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  Okay?

MR. HOGAN:  Ms. Ho, the -- the meeting

will be over, hopefully, some time today and we

will be able to meet with you back at the

office and go through these things for you.

You can answer -- ask questions, and Ms. Kersey
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will be there to explain that to you, if you

are available.

Sorry we can't -- or it's not over right

now --

MS. KERSEY:  Stick around.

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  At her office,

at Ms. Kersey's office.

MR. HOGAN:  -- we will be finished with

the board meeting today and she will be

available to talk to you this afternoon, it may

be 2:30 or so before we're able to do that.

But if you can stick around --

MS. HO:  Yes.

MR. HOGAN:  -- she will be back at -- back

at the other office and she can talk to you

about all of this.  Is that okay?

HEARING OFFICER JOHNSON:  As for me, I

have to go because I have an important call in

45 minutes.

MR. HOGAN:  Okay.  Thank you, Peggy.

(WHEREUPON, at 12:43 p.m., the 

above-entitled proceedings were concluded.) 

---o--- 

(WHEREUPON, a lunch break was held at this 

time.)       
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Mr. Hogan presented the Memorandum from 

Elizabeth Pitman, ADH Deputy General Counsel, 

to Cosmetology Technical Advisory Committee, 

dated April 7, 2014, regarding Hair Braiding.      

Motion was made by Ms. Steele, seconded by 

Ms. Jackson to allow the department to move 

forward with the proposed hair braiding 

certification, as agreed, and to consider the 

grandfathering provisions and reciprocity with 

other states.  Motion passed six to one. 

There will be an ad hoc meeting on June 2 

to discuss esthetics rules and regulations.   

Chairman Anderson discussed subjects 

covered at the latest convention she attended.  

The was discussion regarding students cannot 

receipt payment for working on customer's hair 

while still in school.  Also discussion was had 

regarding early testing of students before they 

complete school. 

(WHEREUPON, at 1:35 p.m., the 

above-entitled proceedings were concluded.) 

---o--- 
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CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF ARKANSAS ) 

COUNTY OF PULASKI ) 

 

I, SUSAN B. WHITSON, Certified Court Reporter 

and notary public in and for Pulaski County, State of 

Arkansas, do hereby certify that the meeting of the 

Arkansas Department of Health, Cosmetology Section, 

Cosmetology Technical Advisory Committee, May 19, 2014, 

was taken by me in Stenotype and was reduced to 

computer-generated typewritten form by me or under my 

direction and supervision; that the witnesses were duly 

sworn by the Hearing Officer; and that the same is a true 

and correct reflection of the proceedings that occurred, 

to the best of my knowledge and ability. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither counsel 

for, related to, nor employed by any of the parties to 

the action in which these proceedings were taken; and, 

further that I am not a relative or employee of any 

attorney or counsel employed by the parties hereto, nor 

financially interested, or otherwise, in the outcome of 

this action; and that I have no contract with the 

parties, attorneys, or persons with an interest in the 

action that affects or has a substantial tendency to 
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affect impartiality, that requires me to relinquish 

control of an original transcript or copies of the 

transcript before it is certified and delivered to the 

custodial attorney, or that requires me to provide any 

service not made available to all parties to the action. 

SIGNED AND SWORN this _________ day of  

______________________________  __________. 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSAN B. WHITSON, CCR, #158 

NOTARY COMMISSION #12388076 

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR 

PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS  

 

My Commission Expires: June 4, 2022. 

 

 

---o--- 
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